# UTAH STATE DIGEST

OFFICIAL NOTICES OF UTAH STATE GOVERNMENT Filed September 03, 2025, 12:00 a.m. through September 15, 2025, 11:59 p.m.

Number 2025-19 October 01, 2025

Sunnie Burningham, Managing Editor

The *Utah State Digest (Digest)* is an official noticing publication of the executive branch of Utah state government. The Office of Administrative Rules, part of the Department of Government Operations, produces the *Digest* under authority of Section 63G-3-402.

The Portable Document Format (PDF) version of the *Digest* is the official version. The PDF version of this issue is available at https://rules.utah.gov/. Any discrepancy between the PDF version and other versions will be resolved in favor of the PDF version.

Inquiries concerning the substance or applicability of an administrative rule that appears in the *Digest* should be addressed to the contact person for the rule. Questions about the *Digest* or the rulemaking process may be addressed to: Office of Administrative Rules, PO Box 141007, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-1007, telephone 801-957-7110. Additional rulemaking information and electronic versions of all administrative rule publications are available at https://rules.utah.gov/.

The *Utah State Digest* summarizes the contents of the *Utah State Bulletin* of the same volume and issue number. The *Digest* is available by e-mail subscription or online. Visit https://rules.utah.gov/for additional information.

Office of Administrative Rules, Salt Lake City 84114

Unless otherwise noted, all information presented in this publication is in the public domain and may be reproduced, reprinted, and redistributed as desired.

Materials incorporated by reference retain the copyright asserted by their respective authors. Citation to the source is requested.

Utah state digest.

- Semimonthly.

  1. Delegated legislation--Utah--Digests.

  I. Utah. Office of Administrative Rules.

KFU440.A73S7 348.792'025--DDC

85-643197

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

| EXECUTIVE DOCUMENTS   | 1  |
|---|----|
| PROCLAMATION  |    |
| 2025-05E  | 1  |
| NOTICES OF PROPOSED RULES                                     | 2  |
| GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS, DATA PRIVACY                           |    |
| R18-1. Relief from Data Privacy Requirements                  | 3  |
| GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS, GOVERNMENT RECORDS OFFICE              |    |
| R20-1. Definitions for Rules in Title R20                     | 5  |
| R20-3. Government Records Office Hearing Procedures           | 7  |
| R20-4. Filing and Declining Hearings                          | 9  |
| R20-5. Compliance with Director Decisions and Orders          | 11 |
| R20-6. Subpoenas Issued by the Director                       | 12 |
| R20-7. Expedited Hearing                                      | 14 |
| AGRICULTURE AND FOOD, SPECIALIZED PRODUCTS                    |    |
| R66-2. Cannabis Processing                                    | 16 |
| R66-6. Home Delivery and Courier                              | 19 |
| R66-29. Compliance Procedures                                 | 21 |
| EDUCATION, ADMINISTRATION                                     |    |
| R277-125. Small School District Capital Projects              | 23 |
| R277-301. Educator Licensing                                  | 26 |
| R277-318. Teacher Salary Supplement Program                   | 28 |
| R277-400. School Facility Emergency and Safety                | 30 |
| R277-622. School-based Mental Health Qualifying Grant Program | 33 |
| R277-726. Statewide Online Education Program (SOEP)           | 36 |
| R277-800. Utah Schools for the Deaf and the Blind (USDB)      | 38 |
| ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, AIR QUALITY                            |    |
| R307-801. Utah Asbestos Rule                                  | 40 |
| ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, DRINKING WATER                         |    |
| R309-305. Cross Connection Control and Backflow Prevention    |    |
| Certification   | 43 |
| ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSE AND REMEDIATION |    |
| R311-200. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Definitions                | 46 |

i

| R311-201. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Certification Programs and                   |    |
|---|----|
| UST Operator Training   | 49 |
| R311-203. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Technical Standards                          | 51 |
| R311-204. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Closure and Remediation                      | 54 |
| R311-212. Administration of the Petroleum Storage Tank Fund                     |    |
| Loan Program  | 56 |
| ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY, WASTE MANAGEMENT AND RADIATION CONTROL, WASTE MANAGEMENT |    |
| R315-260. Hazardous Waste Management System                                     | 59 |
| R315-261. General Requirements – Identification and Listing of                  |    |
| Hazardous Waste   | 62 |
| R315-262. Hazardous Waste Generator Requirements                                | 65 |
| R315-263. Standards Applicable to Transporters of Hazardous                     |    |
| Waste and Standards Applicable to Emergency Control of Spills                   |    |
| for Any Hazardous Waste Handlers  | 69 |
| R315-264. Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous                       |    |
| Waste Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities                               | 71 |
| R315-265. Interim Status Standards for Owners and Operators of                  |    |
| Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities                     | 74 |
| R315-266. Standards for the Management of Specific Hazardous                    |    |
| Wastes and Specific Types of Hazardous Waste Management Facilities              | 77 |
| R315-270. Hazardous Waste Permit Program  | 80 |
| GOVERNOR, ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY  |    |
| R357-13. Hotel Convention Center Incentive                                      | 82 |
| MONEY MANAGEMENT COUNCIL, ADMINISTRATION  |    |
| R628-4. Bonding of Public Treasurers  | 85 |
| R628-12. Certification of Qualified Depositories for Public Funds               | 87 |
| Tax Commission, Administration  |    |
| R861-1A-26. Procedures for Formal Adjudicative Proceedings                      |    |
| Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Sections 59-1-501 and 63G-4-204                      |    |
| through 63G-4-209   | 89 |
| R861-1A-34. Private Letter Rulings Pursuant to Utah Code Ann.                   |    |
| Section 59-1-210  | 91 |
| TAX COMMISSION, PROPERTY TAX  |    |
| R884-24P-19. Appraiser Designation Program Pursuant to                          |    |
| Utah Code Ann. Sections 59-2-701 and 59-2-702                                   | 93 |
| R884-24P-33. 2026 Personal Property Valuation Guides and                        |    |
| Schedules Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 59-2-107                           | 95 |

| R884-24P-53. 2026 Guides for Valuation of Land Subject to the Farmland |     |
|--|-----|
| Assessment Act Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 59-2-515             | 98  |
| TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, ADMINISTRATION                              |     |
| R940-4. Airports of Regional Significance                              | 101 |
| NOTICES OF 120-DAY (EMERGENCY) RULES                                   | 104 |
| GOVERNOR, ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY   |     |
| R357-13. Hotel Convention Center Incentive                             | 104 |
| FIVE-YEAR NOTICES OF REVIEW AND STATEMENTS OF CONTINUATION             | 107 |
| GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS, ADMINISTRATIVE RULES (OFFICE OF)                |     |
| R15-2. Public Petitioning for Rulemaking                               | 107 |
| R15-3. Administrative Rules: Scope, Content, and When Required         | 108 |
| R15-4. Administrative Rulemaking Procedures                            | 109 |
| R15-5. Administrative Rules Adjudicative Proceedings                   | 110 |
| AGRICULTURE AND FOOD, PLANT INDUSTRY                                   |     |
| R68-8. Utah Seed Rule  | 111 |
| COMMERCE, PROFESSIONAL LICENSING                                       |     |
| R156-9. Funeral Service Licensing Act Rule                             | 112 |
| R156-61a. Behavior Analyst Licensing Act Rule                          | 113 |
| EDUCATION, ADMINISTRATION  |     |
| R277-701. Early College Programs                                       | 114 |
| R277-723. Start Smart Utah Program                                     | 115 |
| NOTICES OF RULE EFFECTIVE DATES  | 117 |
|  |     |

## **EXECUTIVE DOCUMENTS**

Under authority granted by the Utah Constitution and various federal and state statutes, the Governor periodically issues **EXECUTIVE DOCUMENTS**, which can be categorized as either Executive Orders, Proclamations, and Declarations. Executive Orders set policy for the executive branch; create boards and commissions; provide for the transfer of authority; or otherwise interpret, implement, or give administrative effect to a provision of the Constitution, state law or executive policy. Proclamations call special or extraordinary legislative sessions; designate classes of cities; publish states-of-emergency; promulgate other official formal public announcements or functions; or publicly avow or cause certain matters of state government to be made generally known. Declarations designate special days, weeks or other time periods; call attention to or recognize people, groups, organizations, functions, or similar actions having a public purpose; or invoke specific legislative purposes (such as the declaration of an agricultural disaster).

The Governor's Office staff files **EXECUTIVE DOCUMENTS** that have legal effect with the Office of Administrative Rules for publication and distribution.

#### **PROCLAMATION**

WHEREAS, since the close of the 2025 General Session of the 66th Legislature of the state of Utah, certain matters have arisen which require immediate legislative attention; and

**WHEREAS**, Article VII, Section 6 of the Constitution of the state of Utah provides that the governor may, by proclamation, convene the Senate into Extraordinary Session; and

**NOW, THEREFORE,** I, Spencer J. Cox, governor of the state of Utah, by virtue of the authority vested in me by the Constitution and Laws of the state of Utah, do by this Proclamation call the Senate only of the 66th Legislature of the state of Utah into the Fifth Extraordinary Session at the Utah State Capitol in Salt Lake City, Utah, on the 16th day of September 2025, at 4:00 p.m., for the following purpose:

For the Senate to consent to appointments made by the Governor to positions within state government of the state of Utah since the close of the 2025 General Session of the Legislature of the state of Utah.

**IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF**, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed the Great Seal of the state of Utah. Done at the Utah State Capitol in Salt Lake City, Utah, this 15th day of September 2025.

1

Spencer J. Cox Governor

Deidre M. Henderson Lieutenant Governor

2025-05E

ATTEST:

(State Seal)

**End of the Executive Documents Section** 

## NOTICES OF PROPOSED RULES

A state agency may file a **Proposed Rule** when it determines the need for a substantive change to an existing rule. With a **Notice of Proposed Rule**, an agency may create a new rule, amend an existing rule, repeal an existing rule, or repeal an existing rule and reenact a new rule. Filings received between <u>September 03, 2025, 12:00 a.m.</u>, and <u>September 15, 2025, 11:59 p.m.</u> are included in this, the <u>October 01, 2025</u>, issue of the *Utah State Digest*.

In this publication, each **PROPOSED RULE** is preceded by a **RULE ANALYSIS**. This analysis provides summary information about the **PROPOSED RULE** including the name of a contact person, anticipated cost impact of the rule, and legal cross-references.

The law requires that an agency accept public comment on **PROPOSED RULES** published in this issue of the *Utah State Digest* until at least October 31, 2025. The agency may accept comment beyond this date and will indicate the last day the agency will accept comment in the **RULE ANALYSIS**. The agency may also hold public hearings. Additionally, citizens or organizations may request the agency hold a hearing on a specific **PROPOSED RULE**. Section 63G-3-302 requires that a hearing request be received by the agency proposing the rule "in writing not more than 15 days after the publication date of the proposed rule."

From the end of the public comment period through <u>January 29, 2026</u>, the agency may notify the Office of Administrative Rules that it wants to make the **Proposed Rule** effective. The agency sets the effective date. The date may be no fewer than seven calendar days after the close of the public comment period nor more than 120 days after the publication date of this issue of the *Utah State Digest*. Alternatively, the agency may file a **Change in Proposed Rule** in response to comments received. If the Office of Administrative Rules does not receive a **Notice of Effective Date** or a **Change in Proposed Rule**, the **Proposed Rule** lapses.

The public, interest groups, and governmental agencies are invited to review and comment on **Proposed Rules**. Comment may be directed to the contact person identified on the **Rule Analysis** for each rule.

**PROPOSED RULES** are governed by Section 63G-3-301, Rule R15-2, and Sections R15-4-3, R15-4-4, R15-4-5a, R15-4-9, and R15-4-10.

The Proposed Rules Begin on the Following Page

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |       |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|-------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: New          |       |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R18-1 | Filing ID: 57465 |  |  |

**Agency Information** 

| Agency information   |  |                 |  |
|--|--|-----------------|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | tchline: Government Operations, Data Privacy |                 |  |
| Building:  | Taylorsville State 0                         | Office Building |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W                                |                 |  |
| City, state:   | state: Taylorsville, UT                      |                 |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 141007                                |                 |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1007                |                 |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |                 |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                                       | Email:          |  |
| Lana Taylor 801-834-3121 lanataylor@utah.gov   |  |                 |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |                 |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R18-1. Relief from Data Privacy Requirements

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 491 (2024 General Session); HB 444 (2025 General Session)

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The purpose of this rule is to establish procedures for governmental entities to apply for a limited extension of or exemption from complying with data privacy requirements under Subsection 63A-3-301(5)(a)(i).

This rule also provides procedures for governmental entities to apply to substitute their data privacy training for the data privacy training created by the Utah Office of Data Privacy under Subsection 63A-3-301(5)(a)(ii).

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This rule describes the process by which governmental entities may apply for: a limited extension or exemption; or to substitute their data privacy training.

This rule also describes what action the Utah Office of Data Privacy will take upon receiving an application from a governmental entity, depending on whether a governmental entity's request is approved or denied.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

## A. State budget:

This rule will not result in a cost or savings to the state budget because it merely describes a process for a governmental entity to apply for a remedy that is already described in the statute.

## **B. Local governments:**

This rule will not result in a cost or savings to local governments because it merely describes a process for a governmental entity to apply for a remedy that is already described in the statute.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule will not result in a cost or savings to small businesses because it does not apply to small businesses.

## D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule will not result in a cost or savings to non-small businesses because it does not apply to non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This rule will not result in a cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local governmental entities because this rule only applies to governmental entities and merely describes a process for a governmental entity to apply for a remedy that is already described in the statute.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There will be no compliance costs for affected persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Utah Department of Government Operations, Marvin Dodge, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Subsection 63A-19-301(4)(f) Subsection 63A-19-301(5)

## **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Chris Bramwell, Director | Date: | 08/26/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                          |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |       |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|-------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: New          |       |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R20-1 | Filing ID: 57476 |  |  |

#### **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |  |                     |  |  |
|--|--|---------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Operations, Government Records Office |                     |  |  |
| Building:  | Rio Grande Buildir                               | Rio Grande Building |  |  |
| Street address:  | 346 S Rio Grande St.                             |                     |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT                               |                     |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |                     |  |  |
| Name: Email:   |  |                     |  |  |
| Rebekkah Shaw  | 385-386-1955 rshaw@utah.gov                      |                     |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |                     |  |  |

#### **General Information**

## 2. Rule or section catchline:

R20-1. Definitions for Rules in Title R20

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: SB 277 (2025 General Session)

4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

This new rule provides definitions for the new Title R20.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This rule provides definitions for the rest of the Government Records Office Administrative Rules.

## **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

## A. State budget:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact the state budget.

## B. Local governments:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for local governments.

## C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for small businesses.

## D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for other persons.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact compliance costs for affected persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Government Operations, Marvin Dodge, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory auditation to that requirement: | thority for the rule. If there is also a fed | leral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|---|--|---|
| Subsection 63A-12-203(5)(6)   |  |   |

#### **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                      | 11/07/2025  |
|--|---|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the | ne rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kenneth Williams, Division Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                     |       |            |

| NO <sup>*</sup>         | FICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |                  |
|-------------------------|----------------------------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: New     |                            |                  |
| Rule or section number: | R20-3                      | Filing ID: 57481 |

## **Agency Information**

| - g,   |  |                      |  |
|--|--|----------------------|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Operations, Government Records Office |                      |  |
| Building:  | Rio Grande Buildir                               | Rio Grande Building  |  |
| Street address:  | 346 S Rio Grande                                 | 346 S Rio Grande St. |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT                               |                      |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:                                 |                      |  |
| Name: Email:   |  |                      |  |
| Rebekkah Shaw  | 385-386-1955 rshaw@utah.gov                      |                      |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |                      |  |

| General Information  |  |
|--|--|
| 2. Rule or section catchline:  |  |
| R20-3. Government Records Office Hearing Procedures                              |  |
| 3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?           | Changes are because of legislative action. |
| If yes, any bill number and session: SB 277 (2025 General Session)               |  |
| 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:                             |  |
| This rule provides hearing procedures as required in Subsection 63A-12-20        | 3(5).                                      |
| 5. Summary of the new rule or change:  |  |
| This rule clarifies when materials for a hearing are due, time limits, and other | r hearing procedures.                      |

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact the state budget.

## B. Local governments:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for local government.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for small businesses.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for non-small businesses.

E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for other persons.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact compliance costs for affected persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Government Operations, Marvin Dodge, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory auticitation to that requirement: | thority for the rule. If there is also a fed | eral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|---|--|--|
| Subsection 63A-12-203(5)  |  |  |

## **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |
|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:               | 11/07/2025   |
|---|--|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates mal | king the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date |

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kenneth Williams, Division Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                     |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |       |                  |
|------------------------------|-------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: New          |       |                  |
| Rule or section number:      | R20-4 | Filing ID: 57479 |

## **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline: | Government Operations, Government Records Office |
|---------------------|--|
| Building:           | Rio Grande Building                              |
| Street address:     | 346 S Rio Grande St.                             |
| City, state:        | Salt Lake City, UT                               |

| Contact persons: |                             |  |
|------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| Name:            | Phone:                      | Email:   |
| Rebekkah Shaw    | 385-386-1955                | rshaw@utah.gov                                       |
| Please addre     | ss questions regarding info | ormation on this notice to the persons listed above. |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R20-4. Filing and Declining Hearings

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: SB 277 (2025 General Session)

4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

This rule provides procedures for scheduling and declining appeals filed under Section 63G-2-403.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This rule clarifies what materials are required for an appeal to be complete, what a petitioner should include if a governmental entity's denial is because they do not maintain records, and what will be included in certain denials for a hearing.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact the state budget.

## B. Local governments:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for local government.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for small businesses.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for other persons.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact compliance costs for affected persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
|-----------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Other Persons         | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost     | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits       | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget          | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments     | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses      | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons         | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Government Operations, Marvin Dodge, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Subsection 63A-12-203(5)

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

|    | Agency head or designee and title: | Kenneth Williams, Division Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |  |
|----|------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------|------------|--|
| 11 |                                    |                                     | I     |            |  |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |       |                  |  |  |  |
|------------------------------|-------|------------------|--|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: New          |       |                  |  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R20-5 | Filing ID: 57478 |  |  |  |

## **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Ope                      | Government Operations, Government Records Office |  |  |  |  |
|--|-------------------------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| Building:  | Rio Grande Build                    | Rio Grande Building                              |  |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 346 S Rio Grand                     | 346 S Rio Grande St.                             |  |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U                   | Salt Lake City, UT                               |  |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                                     |  |  |  |  |  |
| Name:  | me: Email:                          |  |  |  |  |  |
| Rebekkah Shaw  | ah Shaw 385-386-1955 rshaw@utah.gov |  |  |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                     |  |  |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

## 2. Rule or section catchline:

R20-5. Compliance with Director Decisions and Orders

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: SB 277 (2025 General Session)

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

This rule provides requirements and expectations regarding notices of compliance.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This rule clarifies notices of compliance are required under Subsection 63G-2-403(15).

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact the state budget.

## **B. Local governments:**

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for local government.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for small businesses.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for other persons.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact compliance costs for affected persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

| Small Businesses      | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |
|-----------------------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |
| Other Persons         | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |
| Total Fiscal Benefits | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |
| Net Fiscal Benefits   | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Government Operations, Marvin Dodge, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Subsection 63A-12-203(5)

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kenneth Williams, Division Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                     |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |       |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|-------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: New          |       |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R20-6 | Filing ID: 57482 |  |  |

## **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Operations, Government Records Office |                     |  |  |  |
|--|--|---------------------|--|--|--|
| Building:  | Rio Grande Buildin                               | Rio Grande Building |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 346 S Rio Grande St.                             |                     |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT                               |                     |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |                     |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone: Email:                                    |                     |  |  |  |
| Rebekkah Shaw  | 385-386-1955 rshaw@utah.gov                      |                     |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |                     |  |  |  |

## **General Information**

|  | Conoral Information  |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| 2. Rule or section catchline:                        |  |  |  |  |  |
| R20-6. Subpoenas Issued by the Director              |  |  |  |  |  |
| 3. Are any changes in this filing beca               | use of state legislative action?                                   | Changes are because of legislative action. |  |  |  |
| If yes, any bill number and session:                 | If yes, any bill number and session: SB 277 (2025 General Session) |  |  |  |  |
| 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change: |  |  |  |  |  |
| This rule provides procedures regarding              | g subpoenas.   |  |  |  |  |

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This rule clarifies how to request a subpoena and what is required when it is granted.

The Director may also issue subpoenas. If a subpoena request is denied, the decision is final.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact the state budget.

#### **B.** Local governments:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for local government.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for small businesses.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for non-small businesses.

E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for other persons.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact compliance costs for affected persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Government Operations, Marvin Dodge, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory auditation to that requirement: | hority for the rule. If there is also a fed | eral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|---|---|--|
| Subsection 62 / 12 202/5)   |   |  |

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

**10. This rule change MAY become effective on:**11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kenneth Williams, Division Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                     |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |       |                  |  |
|------------------------------|-------|------------------|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: New          |       |                  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R20-7 | Filing ID: 57480 |  |

#### **Agency Information**

|  | Agonoy information |  |  |  |
|--|--------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Ope     | Government Operations, Government Records Office |  |  |
| Building:  | Rio Grande Build   | Rio Grande Building                              |  |  |
| Street address:  | 346 S Rio Grand    | 346 S Rio Grande St.                             |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U  | Salt Lake City, UT                               |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                    |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:             | Email:   |  |  |
| Rebekkah Shaw  | 385-386-1955       | 385-386-1955 rshaw@utah.gov                      |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                    |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

| General information   |  |  |
|---|--|--|
| 2. Rule or section catchline:   |  |  |
| R20-7. Expedited Hearing  |  |  |
| 3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?        | Changes are because of legislative action. |  |
| If yes, any bill number and session: SB 277 (2025 General Session)            |  |  |
| 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:                          |  |  |
| This rule provides procedures to request an expedited hearing.                |  |  |
| 5. Summary of the new rule or change:   |  |  |
| This rule clarifies how to request an expedited hearing and when it will be g | granted.                                   |  |

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

## A. State budget:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact the state budget.

## B. Local governments:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for local government.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for small businesses.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not increase costs or savings for other persons.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule is created because of a change in legislation. This rule does not impact compliance costs for affected persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Government Operations, Marvin Dodge, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| Citation to that requirement.  |  |  |  |  |
| Subsection 63A-12-203(5)   |  |  |  |  |

#### **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

## 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kenneth Williams, Division Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                     |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |       |                  |
|------------------------------|-------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |       |                  |
| Rule or section number:      | R66-2 | Filing ID: 57488 |

## **Agency Information**

|  | Agency information                         |                      |  |  |
|--|--|----------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Agriculture and Food, Specialized Products |                      |  |  |
| Building:  | TSOB, South Bldg                           | , Floor 2            |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W                              |                      |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT 84                        | 129                  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 146500                              |                      |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6500              |                      |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |                      |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                                     | Email:               |  |  |
| Amber Brown  | 385-245-5222                               | ambermbrown@utah.gov |  |  |
| Brandon Forsyth  | 801-710-9945                               | bforsyth@utah.gov    |  |  |
| Camille Knudson  | 801-597-6010 camillek@utah.gov             |                      |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |                      |  |  |

## **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R66-2. Cannabis Processing

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The Department of Agriculture and Food (department) revised this rule by filing changes last spring, which generated public comments.

After this rule became effective, the department decided to revise it again to implement some of the suggested changes. To ensure quick implementation, the department filed an emergency rule, which expires on 11/07/2025. This filing incorporates those changes from the emergency rule.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The department proposes changes to this rule to enhance consistency and clarity and align with the Rulewriting Manual for Utah.

The proposed rule revises definitions, omitting those redundant to statute, and clarifies initial labeling requirements to match statutory provisions.

Additionally, the period for when a cannabis facility reports receiving inventory disparities to the department is from one day to one week. This change aligns more with current industry practice and provides the industry with the time to accurately report the information.

While the extension of the reporting period from one day to one week is a substantive change, it does not alter the fundamental reporting obligation or create new fees or penalties.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

### A. State budget:

The department anticipates no fiscal impact on the state's budget from these proposed changes.

The department is extending the inventory disparity reporting period as a procedural adjustment that does not alter reporting obligations, fees, or penalties.

## **B.** Local governments:

The proposed changes will not impact local governments because they do not administer or participate in this program.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

The department anticipates no fiscal impact on small businesses from these proposed changes.

The extended reporting period for inventory disparities is a procedural adjustment that does not alter reporting obligations or introduce new fees or penalties, therefore avoiding new compliance costs.

## D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

The department anticipates no fiscal impact on non-small businesses from these proposed changes.

The extended reporting period for inventory disparities is a procedural adjustment that does not alter reporting obligations or introduce new fees or penalties, therefore avoiding new compliance costs.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

The department anticipates no fiscal impact on other persons from these proposed changes.

The extended reporting period for inventory disparities is a procedural adjustment that does not alter reporting obligations or introduce new fees or penalties, therefore avoiding new compliance costs.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

The compliance costs for the program are not changing.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Commissioner of the Department of Agriculture and Food, Kelly Pehrson, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |                                |                         |  |  |
|--|--------------------------------|-------------------------|--|--|
| Subsection 4-41a-103(5)  | Subsection 4-41a-302(3)(b)(ii) | Subsection 4-41a-404(3) |  |  |
| Subsection 4-41a-405(2)(b)(iv)   | Subsection 4-41a-701(3)        | Subsection 4-41a-801(1) |  |  |
| Subsection 4-2-103(1)(i)   |                                |                         |  |  |

## **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: | 11/07/2025 |
|---|------------|
|---|------------|

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| 3                   | Kelly Pehrson, Commissioner | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE       |       |                  |  |
|------------------------------------|-------|------------------|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Repeal and Reenact |       |                  |  |
| Rule or section number:            | R66-6 | Filing ID: 57487 |  |

## **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline: Agriculture and Food, Specialized Products |                           |
|--|---------------------------|
| Building:  | TSOB, South Bldg, Floor 2 |

| Street address:  | ss: 4315 S 2700 W              |                               |  |  |
|--|--------------------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT 84            | Taylorsville, UT 84129        |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 146500                  | PO Box 146500                 |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT             | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6500 |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:               |                               |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                         | Email:                        |  |  |
| Amber Brown  | 385-245-5222                   | ambermbrown@utah.gov          |  |  |
| Brandon Forsyth  | 801-710-9945                   | bforsyth@utah.gov             |  |  |
| Camille Knudson  | 801-597-6010 camillek@utah.gov |                               |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                |                               |  |  |

#### **General Information**

## 2. Rule or section catchline:

R66-6. Home Delivery and Courier

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The Department of Agriculture and Food (department) is filing the proposed changes to reduce redundant information found in statute and to align the requirements with the Rulewriting Manual for Utah.

The filing revises this rule to enhance clarity and ease of understanding of requirement by rewriting the provisions to be concise, clear, and direct.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

These revisions constitute a repeal and reenact of this rule, primarily to streamline and remove redundant information that is already present in the Utah Code.

The most significant changes involve the removal of several detailed definitions, application procedures for courier agents, renewal procedures, and continuing education requirements. These elements are covered directly within the relevant sections of Title 4, Chapter 41a, Cannabis Production Establishments and Pharmacies.

Furthermore, the revised Rule R66-6 now consolidates and clarifies operating standards for home delivery services and agents within Sections R66-6-3 and R66-6-4, moving from a more fragmented structure to a more organized presentation of these requirements.

Notably, Sections R66-6-5 and R66-6-6 have been revised, addressing procedures for changes to operating plans and establishing clear violation categories with associated penalty ranges. This enhancement provides much-needed clarity and enforcement mechanisms, directly addressing compliance and safety aspects of medical cannabis home delivery.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

## A. State budget:

This filing will not impact the state's budget because the program requirements are not changing.

The proposed changes are mostly administrative and focus on regulatory efficiency.

## **B. Local governments:**

This filing will not impact local governments because local governments do not administer nor participate in the program.

## C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This filing will not impact small businesses because the program requirements are not changing.

The proposed changes are mostly administrative and focus on regulatory efficiency.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This filing will not impact non-small businesses because the program requirements are not changing.

The proposed changes are mostly administrative and focus on regulatory efficiency.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This filing will not impact other persons because the program requirements are not changing.

The proposed changes are mostly administrative and focus on regulatory efficiency.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

The compliance costs for the program are not changing.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Commissioner of the Department of Agriculture and Food, Kelly Pehrson, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

## **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory auditation to that requirement: | hority for the rule. If there is also a fed | eral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|---|---|--|
| Subsection 4-41a-1202(1)  |   |  |

#### **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

## 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kelly Pehrson, Commissioner | Date: | 09/09/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

|                           | NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE | CHANGE           |
|---------------------------|-----------------------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment |                       |                  |
| Rule or section number:   | R66-29                | Filing ID: 57461 |

## **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |  |                               |  |  |
|--|--|-------------------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Agriculture and Food, Specialized Products |                               |  |  |
| Building:  | TSOB, South Bldg                           | , Floor 2                     |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W                              |                               |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT 84                        | 129                           |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 146500                              |                               |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT                         | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6500 |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |                               |  |  |
| Name:  | Name: Email:                               |                               |  |  |
| Amber Brown  | 385-245-5222                               | ambermbrown@utah.gov          |  |  |
| Brandon Forsyth  | 801-710-9945                               | bforsyth@utah.gov             |  |  |
| Camille Knudson  | 801-597-6010 camillek@utah.gov             |                               |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |                               |  |  |

#### **General Information**

## 2. Rule or section catchline:

R66-29. Compliance Procedures

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The Department of Agriculture and Food (department) is revising its internal organizational structure and aligning the Kratom program under the Specialized Products division.

The proposed rule aligns with this reorganization and includes information regarding violations of the Kratom Consumer Protection Act.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The amendment to this rule:

- 1) removes a redundant definition that is found in the Utah Code;
- 2) clarifies the signature needed by the department representative for the hold order; and
- 3) includes the increase for a citation that is not paid within 30 or 60 days for violating the Kratom Consumer Protection Act.

Finally, the proposed revision in Subsection R66-29-7(2) includes a reference to the updated citation information in Section R66-29-4.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

## A. State budget:

The proposed changes to this rule will not impact the state's budget because they are removing redundant information and clarifying the citation fine amounts for violations not paid within 30-60 days.

#### **B.** Local governments:

The proposed changes will not impact local governments because they do not administer the program nor participate in it.

## C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

The proposed changes to this rule will not impact small businesses because the changes remove redundant information and clarify the citation fine amounts for violations not paid within 30-60 days.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

The proposed changes to this rule will not impact non-small businesses because the revisions focus on removing redundant information and clarifying the citation fine amounts for violations not paid within 30-60 days.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

The proposed changes to this rule will not impact other persons because the revisions focus on removing redundant information and clarifying the citation fine amounts for violations not paid within 30-60 days.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

The compliance costs for this program are not changing.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Commissioner of the Department of Agriculture and Food, Kelly Pehrson, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |                 |  |  |
|--|-----------------|--|--|
| Subsection 4-2-103(1)(i)   | Section 4-2-302 |  |  |

#### **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kelly Pehrson, Commissioner | Date: | 09/04/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

|                           | NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE C | HANGE            |
|---------------------------|-------------------------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment |                         |                  |
| Rule or section number:   | R277-125                | Filing ID: 57500 |

## **Agency Information**

|  | Age               | ency information                           |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Admi   | Education, Administration                  |  |  |
| Building:  | Board of Educat   | ion  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S       |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, L | JT 84111                                   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200     | PO Box 144200                              |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, L | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:  |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Email:                                     |  |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550      | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |  |  |  |

## **General Information**

## 2. Rule or section catchline:

R277-125. Small School District Capital Projects

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 462 (2025 General Session)

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The rule amendments are due to the passage of HB 462 during the 2025 General Session.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The amendments implement a new grant program passed in HB 462 (2025) for small school districts, providing funding for rural school athletic facilities.

The amendments specifically establish requirements for the grant application and approval process and change the rule title to "One Time Funding Appropriations for Small School Districts."

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on state government revenues or expenditures. This rule change is due to HB 462 (2025). The Utah State Board of Education (USBE) believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 462 (2025).

This rule establishes requirements for the grant application as required by HB 462 (2025) and does not add additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, Local Education Agencies (LEAs), or other entities.

#### **B. Local governments:**

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on local governments' revenues or expenditures. This rule change is due to HB 462 (2025). The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 462 (2025).

This rule establishes requirements for the grant application as required by HB 462 (2025) and does not add additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or other entities.

### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on small businesses' revenues or expenditures.

This only affects the USBE and LEAs.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are no non-small businesses in the industry in question, Elementary and Secondary Schools (North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) 611110). Because there are no non-small businesses, they do not account for any service delivery for Elementary and Secondary Schools. Therefore, non-small businesses are not expected to receive increased or decreased revenues per year. This proposed rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because there are no applicable non-small businesses, and it does not require any expenditures of, or generate revenue for non-small businesses.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on revenues or expenditures for persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities. This rule change is due to HB 462 (2025). The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 462 (2025).

This rule establishes requirements for the grant application as required by HB 462 (2025) and does not add additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or other entities.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no compliance costs for affected persons. This rule change is due to HB 462 (2025). The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 462 (2025).

This rule establishes requirements for the grant application as required by HB 462 (2025) and does not add additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or other entities.

## **G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
|-----------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Other Persons         | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost     | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits       | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget          | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments     | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses      | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons         | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| 1                     | 1      | 1      |        |        |        |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The State Superintendent of the Utah State Board of Education, Molly Hart, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Article X, Section 3

Subsection 53E-3-401(4)

Section 53F-10-102

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

Agency head or designee and title:

Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of Policy

Date:

09/15/2025

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |
| Rule or section number:      | R277-301 | Filing ID: 57501 |

## **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Adm    | Education, Administration                  |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--|--|--|
| Building:  | Board of Educat   | ion  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S       |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U | JT 84111                                   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200     | PO Box 144200                              |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:  |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Email:                                     |  |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550      | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R277-301. Educator Licensing

## 3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 447 (2025 General Session)

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The rule amendments are due to the passage of HB 447 during the 2025 General Session and staff recommendations from constituent feedback.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The amendments are aligned with the Statewide Catalyst Campus Model which created licensing exceptions for industry professionals teaching in catalyst centers. The amendments update requirements for a number of license areas and endorsements.

Additionally, the amendments clarify that a school resource officer does not need to be background checked through the USBE process if they've already met law enforcement requirements.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

## A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on state government revenues or expenditures. This rule change is due to HB 447 (2025). The Utah State Board of Education (USBE) believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 447 (2025).

This rule change does not add additional fiscal impact for the USBE, Local Education Agencies (LEAs), or other entities.

## **B. Local governments:**

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on local governments' revenues or expenditures. This rule change is due to HB 447 (2025). The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 447 (2025).

This rule change does not add additional fiscal impact for the USBE, LEAs, or other entities.

## C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on small business revenues or expenditures. This rule change is due to HB 447 (2025). The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 447 (2025).

This rule change does not add additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or other entities.

## D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are no non-small businesses in the industry in question, Elementary and Secondary Schools (North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) 611110). Because there are no non-small businesses, they do not account for any service delivery for Elementary and Secondary Schools. Therefore, non-small businesses are not expected to receive increased or decreased revenues per year. This proposed rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because there are no applicable non-small businesses, and it does not require any expenditures of, or generate revenue for non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on revenues or expenditures for persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities. This rule change is due to HB 447 (2025). The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were

captured in the fiscal note to HB 447 (2025). This rule change does not add additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or other entities.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no compliance costs for affected persons. This rule change is due to HB 447 (2025). The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note to HB 447 (2025).

This rule change does not add additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or other entities.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The State Superintendent of the Utah State Board of Education, Molly Hart, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide | de a |
|--|------|
| citation to that requirement:  |      |

Article X, Section 3 Section 53E-6-102 Section 53E-3-401

## **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | Policy                                 |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Repeal       |          |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R277-318 | Filing ID: 57502 |  |  |

## **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |  |                          |  |  |
|--|--|--------------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Administration                  |                          |  |  |
| Building:  | Board of Education                         | Board of Education       |  |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S                                | 250 E 500 S              |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT                         | Salt Lake City, UT 84111 |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200                              |                          |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |                          |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |                          |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                                     | Email:                   |  |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |                          |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |                          |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R277-318. Teacher Salary Supplement Program

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

This rule is being repealed because Salary Supplement for Highly Needed Educators (SHINE) is now fully operational.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The repeal is necessary because the Teacher Salary Supplement Program (TSSP) has transitioned to the new Salary Supplement for Highly Needed Educators (SHINE). The SHINE program is now fully operational and the rule governing the TSSP program can therefore be repealed.

This rule is repealed in its entirety.

## **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

## A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impacts on state government revenues or expenditures. The TSSP was discontinued by the legislature and was replaced by the SHINE program starting with FY2026.

This action was taken in the 2024 General Session.

There are no additional fiscal impacts associated with repealing this rule.

## B. Local governments:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impacts on local governments' revenues or expenditures. The TSSP was discontinued by the legislature and was replaced by the SHINE program starting with FY2026.

This action was taken in the 2024 General Session.

There are no additional fiscal impacts associated with repealing this rule.

## C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on small businesses' revenues or expenditures. The TSSP was discontinued by the legislature and was replaced by the SHINE program starting with FY2026.

This action was taken in the 2024 General Session.

There are no additional fiscal impacts associated with repealing this rule.

## D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are no non-small businesses in the industry in question, Elementary and Secondary Schools (North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) 611110). Because there are no non-small businesses, they do not account for any service delivery for Elementary and Secondary Schools. Therefore, non-small businesses are not expected to receive increased or decreased revenues per year. This proposed rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because there are no applicable non-small businesses, and it does not require any expenditures of, or generate revenue for non-small businesses.

## E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impacts on revenues or expenditures for persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities. The TSSP was discontinued by the legislature and was replaced by the SHINE program starting with FY2026.

This action was taken in the 2024 General Session.

There are no additional fiscal impacts associated with repealing this rule.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no compliance costs for affected persons. The TSSP was discontinued by the legislature and was replaced by the SHINE program starting with FY2026.

This action was taken in the 2024 General Session.

There are no additional fiscal impacts associated with repealing this rule.

## **G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

| Total Fiscal Benefits | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |
|-----------------------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|
| Net Fiscal Benefits   | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 | \$0 |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The State Superintendent of the Utah State Board of Education, Molly Hart, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

## **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a |
|--|
| citation to that requirement:  |
|  |

Article X, Section 3 Section 53E-3-401 Section 53F-2-504

## **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

Agency head or designee and title:

Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of Policy

Date: 09/15/2025

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R277-400 | Filing ID: 57503 |  |  |

## **Agency Information**

| rigonoj internitation  |                   |  |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Admi   | Education, Administration                  |  |  |
| Building:  | Board of Educati  | Board of Education                         |  |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S       | 250 E 500 S                                |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84111                   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200     | PO Box 144200                              |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                   |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Email:                                     |  |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550      | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |  |  |  |

#### General Information

| General information   |  |  |  |  |  |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| 2. Rule or section catchline:   |  |  |  |  |  |
| R277-400. School Facility Emergency and Safety  |  |  |  |  |  |
| 3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?  | Changes are because of legislative action. |  |  |  |  |
| If yes, any bill number and session: HB 40 (2025 General Session)   |  |  |  |  |  |
| 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:  |  |  |  |  |  |
| These rule amendments are necessary in order to align this rule with recent legislative changes to school safety. |  |  |  |  |  |

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The amendments:

- 1) add an oversight category 2:
- 2) add new definitions;
- 3) add new training requirements; and
- 4) specify who is involved in school safety decision making.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impacts on state government revenues or expenditures.

The addition of an oversight category is part of the Utah State Board of Education's (USBE) effort to categorize rules into the board oversight framework in Rule R277-111 and does not add any costs for the USBE, Local Education Agencies (LEAs), or any other entities.

The definition, training, and decision making changes are due to HB 40, passed in the 2025 General Session and this rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note for HB 40 (2025).

#### **B.** Local governments:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on local governments' revenues or expenditures.

The addition of an oversight category is part of the USBE's effort to categorize rules into the board oversight framework in Rule R277-111 and does not add any costs for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The definition, training, and decision making changes are due to HB 40 (2025) and this rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note for HB 40 (2025).

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on small businesses' revenues or expenditures.

The addition of an oversight category is part of the USBE's effort to categorize rules into the board oversight framework in Rule R277-111 and does not add any costs for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The definition, training, and decision making changes are due to HB 40 (2025) and this rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note for HB 40 (2025).

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are no non-small businesses in the industry in question, Elementary and Secondary Schools (North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) 611110). Because there are no non-small businesses, they do not account for any service delivery for Elementary and Secondary Schools. Therefore, non-small businesses are not expected to receive increased or decreased revenues per year. This proposed rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because there are no applicable non-small businesses, and it does not require any expenditures of, or generate revenue for non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on revenues or expenditures for persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities.

The addition of an oversight category is part of the USBE's effort to categorize rules into the board oversight framework in Rule R277-111 and does not add any costs for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The definition, training, and decision making changes are due to HB 40 (2025) and this rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note for HB 40 (2025).

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no compliance costs for affected persons.

The addition of an oversight category is part of the USBE's effort to categorize rules into the board oversight framework in Rule R277-111 and does not add any costs for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The definition, training, and decision making changes are due to HB 40 (2025) and this rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

The USBE believes the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal note for HB 40 (2025).

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The State Superintendent of the Utah State Board of Education, Molly Hart, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the | rule, provide a |
|--|-----------------|
| citation to that requirement:  |                 |

| rticle X, Section 3 | Subsection 53E-3-401(4) | Subsection 53G-4-402(1)(b) |
|---------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|
|---------------------|-------------------------|----------------------------|

#### **Public Notice Information**

# 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

# 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | Policy                                 |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R277-622 | Filing ID: 57504 |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agonoy information   |                   |  |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Admi   | Education, Administration                  |  |  |
| Building:  | Board of Educati  | ion  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S       |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U | T 84111                                    |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200     | PO Box 144200                              |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:  |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Phone: Email:                              |  |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550      | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R277-622. School-based Mental Health Qualifying Grant Program

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 411 (2023 General Session)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

These rule amendments are due to the passage of HB 411 during the 2023 General Session.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The amendments remove an outdated funding match requirement. The match requirement was formally removed from the Utah Code in 2023 with the passage of HB 411.

# **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impacts on state government revenues or expenditures.

This rule change removes a matching requirement that was removed by HB 411 (2023).

This rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts outside the fiscal note to HB 411 (2023) for the Utah State Board of Education (USBE), Local Education Agencies (LEAs), or any other entities.

### **B. Local governments:**

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on local governments' revenues or expenditures.

This rule change removes a matching requirement that was removed by HB 411 (2023).

This rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts outside the fiscal note to HB 411 (2023) for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on small businesses' revenues or expenditures.

This rule change removes a matching requirement that was removed by HB 411 (2023).

This rule change does not add any additional fiscal impacts outside the fiscal note to HB 411 (2023) for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are no non-small businesses in the industry in question, Elementary and Secondary Schools (North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) 611110). Because there are no non-small businesses, they do not account for any service delivery for Elementary and Secondary Schools. Therefore, non-small businesses are not expected to receive increased or decreased revenues per year. This proposed rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because there are no applicable non-small businesses, and it does not require any expenditures of, or generate revenue for non-small businesses.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on revenues or expenditures for persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities.

This rule change removes a matching requirement that was removed by HB 411 (2023).

This rule change does not add any additional fiscal impact outside the fiscal note to HB 411 (2023) for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no compliance costs for affected persons.

This rule change removes a matching requirement that was removed by HB 411 (2023).

This rule change does not add any additional fiscal impact outside the fiscal note to HB 411 (2023) for the USBE, LEAs, or any other entities.

# **G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

| Other Persons         | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
|-----------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Total Fiscal Cost     | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits       | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget          | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments     | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses      | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons         | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The State Superintendent of the Utah State Board of Education, Molly Hart, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

# **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|
| Article X, Section 3 Section 53E-3-401 Subsection 53E-4-302(1)(a)  |  |  |  |
| Section 53F-2-415  |  |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |
|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:   | 11/07/2025 |  |
|---|------------|--|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |            |  |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--|------------|
| designee and title: | Policy                                       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R277-726 | Filing ID: 57505 |  |

# **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Adm    | Education, Administration                  |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--|--|--|
| Building:  | Board of Educa    | tion                                       |  |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S       |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, l | JT 84111                                   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200     | PO Box 144200                              |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, l | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                   |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Phone: Email:                              |  |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550      | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R277-726. Statewide Online Education Program (SOEP)

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 246 and SB 137 (2025 General Session)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The rule amendments are due to the passage of HB 246 and SB 137 during the 2025 General Session.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The amendments add and clarify several definitions.

The amendments also help to clarify the Course Credit Acknowledgement (CCA) process, as well as clarifying Local Education Agency (LEA), superintendent, provider, student, and parent rights and responsibilities.

There are also several updates made related to students with disabilities and other unique learning needs.

In addition, the amendments update the requirements for funding small schools.

#### **Fiscal Information**

## 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

### A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impacts on state government revenues or expenditures. The Utah State Board of Education (USBE) believes that the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal notes to HB 246 and SB 137 (2025) and this rule does not create any additional fiscal impacts outside the changes required by HB 246 and SB 137 (2025).

#### **B.** Local governments:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on local governments' revenues or expenditures.

The USBE believes that the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal notes to HB 246 and SB 137 (2025) and this rule does not create any additional fiscal impacts outside the changes required by HB 246 and SB 137 (2025).

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on small businesses' revenues or expenditures.

The USBE believes that the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal notes to HB 246 and SB 137 (2025) and this rule does not create any additional fiscal impacts outside the changes required by HB 246 and SB 137 (2025).

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are no non-small businesses in the industry in question, Elementary and Secondary Schools (North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) 611110). Because there are no non-small businesses, they do not account for any service delivery for Elementary and Secondary Schools. Therefore, non-small businesses are not expected to receive increased or decreased revenues per year. This proposed rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because there are no applicable non-small businesses, and it does not require any expenditures of, or generate revenue for non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on revenues or expenditures for persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities.

The USBE believes that the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal notes to HB 246 and SB 137 (2025) and this rule does not create any additional fiscal impacts outside the changes required by HB 246 and SB 137 (2025).

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no compliance costs for affected persons.

The USBE believes that the fiscal impacts were captured in the fiscal notes to HB 246 and SB 137 (2025) and this rule does not create any additional fiscal impacts outside the changes required by HB 246 and SB 137 (2025).

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The State Superintendent of the Utah State Board of Education, Molly Hart, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |  |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Article X, Section 3 Section 53F-4-510 Section 53F-4-514   |  |  |  |  |  |
| Section 53E-3-401  |  |  |  |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                      | 11/07/2025  |
|--|---|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the | ne rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | Policy                                 |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R277-800 | Filing ID: 57506 |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |  |          |  |
|--|--|----------|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Adminis                         | stration |  |
| Building:  | Board of Education                         | 1        |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S                                |          |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT                         | 84111    |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200                              |          |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |          |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |          |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                                     | Email:   |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |          |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |          |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R277-800. Utah Schools for the Deaf and the Blind (USDB)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

These rule amendments are needed to clarify the conditions for the Utah Schools for the Deaf and the Blind (USDB) to enroll the hearing sibling of a student who is deaf or hard of hearing and is already enrolled in a USDB campus program.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

These amendments add language that specifies, given current budget constraints, that enrollment of hearing siblings at USDB is subject to available funding.

## **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on state government revenues or expenditures.

This rule change clarifies existing practice by stating that hearing siblings of deaf siblings may be enrolled "subject to available funding".

These students are already enrolled at the discretion of the USDB superintendent and as such there are no measurable fiscal impacts for the USDB, the Utah State Board of the Education (USBE), or other state entities.

# **B. Local governments:**

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on local governments' revenues or expenditures.

This rule change clarifies existing practice by stating that hearing siblings of deaf siblings may be enrolled "subject to available funding".

These students are already enrolled at the discretion of the USDB superintendent and as such there are no measurable fiscal impacts for Local Education Agencies (LEAs).

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on small businesses' revenues or expenditures. This only impacts the USBE and the USDB.

### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are no non-small businesses in the industry in question, Elementary and Secondary Schools (North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) 611110). Because there are no non-small businesses, they do not account for any service delivery for Elementary and Secondary Schools. Therefore, non-small businesses are not expected to receive increased or decreased revenues per year. This proposed rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because there are no applicable non-small businesses, and it does not require any expenditures of, or generate revenue for non-small businesses.

# E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This rule change is not expected to have fiscal impact on revenues or expenditures for persons other than small businesses, businesses, or local government entities.

This rule change clarifies existing practice by stating that hearing siblings of deaf siblings may be enrolled "subject to available funding".

These students are already enrolled at the discretion of the USDB superintendent and as such there are no measurable fiscal impacts for the USDB, the USBE, or other entities or persons

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no compliance costs for affected persons. This rule change clarifies existing practice by stating that hearing siblings of deaf siblings may be enrolled "subject to available funding". These students are already enrolled at the discretion of the USDB superintendent and as such there are no measurable fiscal impacts for the USDB, the USBE, LEAs, or other entities or persons.

# **G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| 1 /                             |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| <b>Total Fiscal Cost</b>        | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The State Superintendent of the Utah State Board of Education, Molly Hart, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |                         |                   |  |  |
|--|-------------------------|-------------------|--|--|
| Article X, Section 3   | Subsection 53E-3-401(4) | Section 53E-8-204 |  |  |
| Section 53E-8-402 Section 53E-8-409  |                         |                   |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |
|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                      | 11/07/2025  |
|--|---|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the | he rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--|------------|
| designee and title: | Policy                                       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R307-801 | Filing ID: 57509 |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |                                 |                                    |  |  |  |
|--|---------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Qu                | Environmental Quality, Air Quality |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi-Agency State              | e Office Building                  |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W                    |                                    |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT              |                                    |  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144820                   |                                    |  |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4820   |                                    |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                                 |                                    |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Name: Email:                    |                                    |  |  |  |
| Lauren Richardson  | 801-707-2308                    | 801-707-2308 Irichardson@utah.gov  |  |  |  |
| Jeff Perkins   | 385-260-3517 jperkins1@utah.gov |                                    |  |  |  |
| Jazmine Lopez 801-536-4050 jazminelopez@utah.gov   |                                 |                                    |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                 |                                    |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R307-801. Utah Asbestos Rule

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

At the request of stakeholders, the proposed amendments aim to reduce the regulatory burden by changing the requirements to exempt non-NESHAP residential homes constructed after 1992 from asbestos inspection requirements, based on the lower likelihood of asbestos being present in newer homes. These residential facilities will still have to follow demolition notification requirements.

The Division of Air Quality (DAQ) is submitting this filing to further clarify asbestos inspection requirements, and to provide balanced regulation while still protecting human health and the environment.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This filing amends Rule R307-801 to revise asbestos inspection requirements for residential facilities with four or fewer units based on their construction date.

The key changes are:

- 1) Residential facilities with four or fewer units built on or after 01/01/1992 (not subject to National Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (NESHAP)):
- a) No asbestos inspection or sampling is required prior to renovation or demolition.
- 2) Demolition notification requirements for residential facilities with four or fewer units built before 1992 will remain in effect.

The amendments do not apply to past, present, or future NESHAP facilities. No changes to pre-1992 residential facilities with four or fewer units.

Changes are also being made to this rule to bring it into compliance with the Rulewriting Manual for Utah standards.

#### **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

Because the rule amendments expand exemptions, there should be no effect on the state budget.

A negligible decrease in asbestos abatement fees collected by the DAQ may occur.

# **B. Local governments:**

Because the rule amendments expand exemptions, there should be no increased costs or savings for local governments.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

Anticipated savings for general contractors, renovation contractors, demolition contractors, and developers.

Anticipated reduced income for asbestos inspection and abatement companies.

Overall, a net savings by the majority of entities.

The exact financial impact is difficult to quantify on small businesses due to the limited number of renovations/demolitions of newer homes.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

Similar to small businesses, non-small businesses in general contracting, renovation, demolition, along with insurance companies will experience savings due to reduced inspection requirements for newer homes with four or fewer units.

The exact financial impact is difficult to quantify on both small and non-small businesses due to the limited number of renovations/demolitions of newer homes.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

Anticipated direct savings for residential property owners with homes built on or after 01/01/1992, due to exemption from asbestos inspection requirements.

The exact financial impact is difficult to quantify due to the limited number of renovations/demolitions of newer homes.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

For residential facilities with four or fewer units built on or after 01/01/1992, affected persons (contractors, homeowners) will see a reduction in compliance costs as asbestos inspections will no longer be required. For pre-1992 and NESHAP facilities, the compliance costs will remain the same.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

# **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Section 19-2-104 Subsection 63G-3-403(3) 40 CFR Part 61, Subpart M   |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. Chapter 85,<br>Section 7412   |  |  |  |  |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.   |                   |  |  |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted u   | 10/31/2025        |  |  |  |  |
| <b>B. A public hearing (optional) will be held</b> (The public may request a hearing by submitting a written request to the agency, as outlined in Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R15-1.): |                   |  |  |  |  |
| Date:  | Time:             | Place (physical address or URL):   |  |  |  |
| 10/22/2025   | 1:00 PM – 2:00 PM | A public hearing is set for Wednesday, 10/22/2025.  Further details may be found below. The hearing will be cancelled should no request for one be made by Friday, 10/17/2025, at 10 AM MT.  The status of the public hearing may be checked at the following website location under the corresponding rule. https://deq.utah.gov/public-notices-archive/air-quality-rule-plan-changes-open-public-comment |  |  |  |

| Interested Persons can participate in person or electronically, via the internet.  |
|--|
| In Person:<br>MASOB<br>195 N 1950 W, Salt Lake City, UT<br>First Floor, Air Quality Board Room                                   |
| Virtual Attendance:<br>Time zone: America/Denver   |
| Google Meet joining info: Video call link: https://meet.google.com/arv- mboh-wsg Or dial: (US) +1 413-276-7830 PIN: 135 589 402# |

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 12/03/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| J                   | Bryce C. Bird, Director | Date: | 08/15/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                         |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE       |          |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Repeal and Reenact |          |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:            | R309-305 | Filing ID: 57468 |  |  |

**Agency Information** 

| - g,   |                                       |                          |  |  |  |
|--|---------------------------------------|--------------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Quality, Drinking Water |                          |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi-Agency State                    | e Office Building        |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W                          |                          |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT                    | Salt Lake City, UT 84116 |  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144830                         | PO Box 144830            |  |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4830         |                          |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                                       |                          |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                                | Email:                   |  |  |  |
| Helen Lau  | 801-247-7416 hlau@utah.gov            |                          |  |  |  |
| Chris Bowles   | 385-600-3378 chrisbowles@utah.gov     |                          |  |  |  |
| chelle Deras 385-499-2920 mderas@utah.gov  |                                       |                          |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                       |                          |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R309-305. Cross Connection Control and Backflow Prevention Certification

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The Division of Drinking Water (Division) is proposing updates to Rule R309-305 through a repeal and reenact action to reflect significant changes made throughout this rule. This approach allows the Division to fully replace the existing rule with a modernized version that has been reorganized, restructured, and aligned with formatting requirements from the Utah Office of Administrative Rules (OAR).

The revisions also improve consistency with Section R309-105-12 which outlines cross-connection control requirements for public water systems, better reflect current practices and national standards already in use, and establish a clear pathway for becoming an accredited agency or approved training provider.

The majority of regulated water systems are already in compliance with the current rule and, as a result, will remain in compliance under the revised and updated rule.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The Division is proposing a repeal and reenact of Rule R309-305 to fully modernize the rule, improve clarity, and align with formatting standards from the OAR.

The revised rule enhances consistency with Section R309-105-12, incorporates national standards already in use (USC 10th Edition and ASSE 1064), and clearly outlines certification requirements, including coursework, application, and examination.

It replaces the former "Commission" with a defined "Advisory Committee," removes the Secretary role, and consolidates certification and accreditation approval authority under the Director.

This rule also clarifies the responsibilities of Program Administrators and strengthens processes for training provider approval, proctor qualifications, and certification renewal.

While the compliance requirements for water systems remain unchanged, the updated rule improves structure, reflects current practices, and provides a clearer, more transparent pathway for accredited agencies and training providers.

The majority of regulated systems are already in compliance and will remain so under the revised rule.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

The Division anticipates no fiscal impact to the state budget as a result of the revised rule.

Regulated water systems are already in compliance with the existing rule, and the updates do not impose new requirements.

Because the revised rule reflects current practices and standards already in use for Cross-Connection Control and Backflow Prevention Certification, Division staff will not require additional time or resources to implement or review projects under the updated version.

The revisions are intended solely to clarify roles and responsibilities without altering the program's scope or resource needs.

# **B. Local governments:**

This rule only affects those local governments that own and operate their own water system.

Because the revised rule reflects current practices and standards already in use for Cross-Connection Control and Backflow Prevention Certification, it does not impose any new requirements.

As a result, the proposed changes are not expected to create a fiscal impact.

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule affects only those small businesses that own and operate their own public water system.

Because the revised rule reflects current practices and standards already in use for Cross-Connection Control and Backflow Prevention Certification, it does not impose any new requirements.

As a result, the proposed changes are not expected to create a fiscal impact.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule only affects those non-small businesses that own and operate their own water system.

Because the revised rule reflects current practices and standards already in use for Cross-Connection Control and Backflow Prevention Certification, it does not impose any new requirements.

As a result, the proposed changes are not expected to create a fiscal impact.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

The Division does not regulate individuals or private water systems, so this rule change does not apply to them.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There are no anticipated compliance costs for any affected entity or person.

The amendment clarifies and updates the existing rule without introducing new requirements or restrictions

Because water systems are already adhering to these practices, no fiscal impact is expected.

# **G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

# 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

| <u>,                                      </u> |                     |  |  |  |
|--|---------------------|--|--|--|
| Title 63G, Chapter 3                           | Subsection 19-4-104 |  |  |  |

#### **Public Notice Information**

# 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

# A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

# 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/19/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Nathan Lunstad, PhD, PE, Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                   |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |
| Rule or section number:      | R311-200 | Filing ID: 57423 |

#### **Agency Information**

| Agency morniation  |   |                                    |  |  |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Quality, Environmental Response and Remediation |                                    |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi Agency Stat   | Multi Agency State Office Building |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W  | 95 N 1950 W                        |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT  | Salt Lake City, UT 84116           |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144840   | PO Box 144840                      |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT  | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4840      |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:  |                                    |  |  |
| Name:  | lame: Email:  |                                    |  |  |
| David Wilson   | 385-251-0893  | djwilson@utah.gov                  |  |  |
| Morgan Atkinson  | 801-979-2512 mpatkinson@utah.gov                              |                                    |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |                                    |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R311-200. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Definitions

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 18 (2025 General Session)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

HB 18, which passed in the 2025 General Session, changed the terms "underground" to "petroleum" where appropriate thus requiring changes in some definitions.

Clarification of a definition was made and an incorrect reference was deleted.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R311-200-1(2)(mm): Definition of "petroleum storage tank" is added to reflect the statutory definition and inform other uses of the term in the PST Rules.

Changes made in HB 18 (2025) required that the definitions be updated in this rule. "Eligible exempt UST", "UST inspector", "UST installation", "UST repair and service", "UST installation permit fee", "UST installer", "UST removal", "UST remover" and "UST tester" were changed to "Eligible exempt PST", "PST inspector", "PST installation", "PST repair and service", "PST installation permit fee", "PST installer", "PST removal", "PST remover" and "PST tester", respectively.

Subsection R311-200-1(2)(a)(iii)(J): Further detailed that the exemption of APSTs that contain a de minimis concentration of regulated substances applies only to aboveground storage tanks last used prior to 05/05/2021.

Subsection R311-200-1(2)(fff)(ii): Changed the definition "Secondary Containment" to remove a reference to a rule that was deleted in a prior rule change.

Nonsubstantive internal rule references changed to reflect changes made in these amendments.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

The Division of Environmental Response and Remediation (Division) does not anticipate any fiscal impact to the state government revenues or expenditures from these definitions.

Any fiscal impact pertaining to defined terms will be addressed in the relevant rule.

## **B. Local governments:**

The Division does not anticipate any fiscal impact to local governments' revenues or expenditures from these definitions.

Any fiscal impact pertaining to defined terms will be addressed in the relevant rule.

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

The Division does not anticipate any fiscal impact to small businesses' revenues or expenditures from these definitions.

Any fiscal impact pertaining to defined terms will be addressed in the relevant rule.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

The Division does not anticipate any fiscal impact to non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures from these definitions.

Any fiscal impact pertaining to defined terms will be addressed in the relevant rule.

# E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

The Division does not anticipate any fiscal impact on other person's revenues or expenditures from these definitions.

Any fiscal impact pertaining to defined terms will be addressed in the relevant rule.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

Any cost or benefits to affected persons relating to the defined terms in this rule will be addressed in the relevant rule.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

| Fiscal Benefits       | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
|-----------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| State Budget          | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments     | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses      | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons         | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Section 19-6-105

Section 19-6-403

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral  | comments to the agency identified | in box 1.   |
|---|-----------------------------------|---|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025  |                                   |   |
| <b>B. A public hearing (optional) will be held</b> outlined in Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R15 |                                   | by submitting a written request to the agency, as                                     |
| Date:   | Time:                             | Place (physical address or URL):  |
| 10/15/2025  |                                   | Multi Agency State Office Building<br>195 N 1950 W<br>Salt Lake City, UT<br>Room 1015 |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:  | 11/14/2025 |
|--|------------|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date |            |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Brent Everett, Director | Date: | 09/11/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                         |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R311-201 | Filing ID: 57441 |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agonoy information  |               |  |  |
|---|---------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline: Environmental Quality, Environmental Response and Remediation |               |  |  |
| Building: Multi Agency State Office Building                                      |               |  |  |
| Street address: 195 N 1950 W  |               |  |  |
| City, state: Salt Lake City, UT 84116   |               |  |  |
| Mailing address:  | PO Box 144840 |  |  |
| City, state and zip: Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4840                                |               |  |  |

| Contact persons:   |              |                     |  |
|--|--------------|---------------------|--|
| Name:  | Phone:       | Email:              |  |
| David Wilson   | 385-251-0893 | djwilson@utah.gov   |  |
| Morgan Atkinson  | 801-979-2512 | mpatkinson@utah.gov |  |
| Please address guestions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |              |                     |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R311-201. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Certification Programs and UST Operator Training

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 18 (2025 General Session)

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

HB 18, Petroleum Storage Tank Amendments, which was passed in the 2025 General Session changed the terms "underground" to "petroleum" for certifying individuals. These modifications required changes of these terms in rule and provided clarification.

Provided clarification of the requirements for re-training of a Class B operators that are found to be out of compliance.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

In multiple parts of this rule, the following terms were changed: UST inspector to PST Inspector, UST tester to PST tester, UST installer to PST installer and UST remover to PST remover.

Subsection R311-201-12(10)(d)(ii): The document, as referenced in this rule, "UST and LUST Performance Definitions as of October 2018", was previously incorporated by reference. This document is vague when pertaining to retraining requirements. This document will be removed as a reference in this rule and will instead refer directly to specific conditions within EPA regulations that trigger the need for retraining.

# **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on state government revenues or expenditures because these certified individuals being hired to do PST work are currently required to be certified under this rule to work on both APSTs and USTs.

Also, any other additional costs were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

#### **B.** Local governments:

This rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on local governments' revenues or expenditures because these certified individuals being hired to do PST work are currently required to be certified under this rule to work on both APSTs and USTs.

Also, any other additional costs were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on small businesses' revenues or expenditures because these certified individuals being hired to do PST work are currently required to be certified under this rule to work on both APSTs and USTs.

Also, any other additional costs were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures because these certified individuals being hired to do PST work are currently required to be certified under this rule to work on both APSTs and USTs. Additional costs were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

These rule changes are not expected to have any fiscal impact on other persons because the rule changes will not apply to these entities.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule change is not expected to have any fiscal impact on affected persons who wish to hire individual to do work on PSTs since these individuals are currently required to be certified under this rule to work on both APSTs and USTs.

Any additional compliance costs for affected persons was accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

# **Citation Information**

# 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

| Section 19-1-301  | Section 19-6-105  | Section 19-6-402                     |
|-------------------|-------------------|--------------------------------------|
| Section 19-6-403  | Section 63G-4-102 | Sections 63G-4-201 through 63G-4-205 |
| Section 63G-4-503 |                   |                                      |

# **Public Notice Information**

| A. Comments will be accepted until: | 10/31/2025 |
|-------------------------------------|------------|
|-------------------------------------|------------|

**B. A public hearing (optional) will be held** (The public may request a hearing by submitting a written request to the agency, as outlined in Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R15-1.):

| outilined in Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R 15-1.): |          |   |  |
|---|----------|---|--|
| Date:   | Time:    | Place (physical address or URL):  |  |
| 10/15/2025  | 02:00 PM | Multi Agency State Office Building<br>195 N 1950 W<br>Salt Lake City, UT<br>Room 1015 |  |

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/14/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Brent Everett, Director | Date: | 09/11/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                         |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE                      |  |  |  |  |  |
|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment                         |  |  |  |  |  |
| Rule or section number: R311-203 Filing ID: 57442 |  |  |  |  |  |

#### **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Q   | Environmental Quality, Environmental Response and Remediation |  |  |  |
|--|-------------------|---|--|--|--|
| Building:  | Multi Agency Sta  | Multi Agency State Office Building                            |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W      | 195 N 1950 W  |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84116                                      |  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144840     | PO Box 144840   |  |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4840                                 |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:  |   |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Email:  |  |  |  |
| David Wilson   | 385-251-0893      | djwilson@utah.gov   |  |  |  |
| Morgan Atkinson  | 801-979-2512      | 801-979-2512 mpatkinson@utah.gov                              |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |   |  |  |  |

# **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R311-203. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Technical Standards

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 18 (2025 General Session)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

HB 18, Petroleum Storage Tank Amendments, which was passed in the 2025 General Session made changes addressing registration of underground storage tanks (UST) and aboveground petroleum storage tanks and clarifies restrictions on petroleum storage tank installation companies.

Modifications were made to Subsection R311-203-5(10) to clarify the existing Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tank (APST) testing requirements.

### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Section R311-203-2: Changes were made to notification requirements for work on Petroleum Storage Tanks. Notification is required no later than 30 days before completion of the work on PSTs or change of ownership of PST sites.

Section R311-203-3: Changes were made to the time frame for notification of new installation permits. Certified PST installers must notify the director of the Division of Environmental Response and Remediation (DERR) 30 days before commencing work on PSTs.

Section R311-203-5: Rule changes in this section aim to clarify the existing PST testing requirements for owners or operators of APSTs. There are no additional requirements being imposed on these entities.

UST was changed to PST where appropriate.

#### **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

Sections R311-203-2 and R311-203-3: this rule change is expected to have a fiscal cost to state-owned facilities with APSTs due to the requirement for obtaining a permit for any new APST Installation. This cost is inestimable because it is unknown how many new APST systems will be installed by the state. Any additional costs or benefits were estimated in the fiscal note attached to HB18 (2025).

Section R311-203-5: this rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to state-owned facilities with APSTs because this rule was reorganized so that the requirements in this rule were clearer.

No additional requirements were added.

#### B. Local governments:

Sections R311-203-2 and R311-203-3: this rule change is expected to have a fiscal cost to local government-owned facilities with APSTs due to the requirement for obtaining a permit for any new APST Installation. This cost is inestimable because it is unknown how many new APST systems will be installed by local governments. Any additional costs or benefits were estimated in the fiscal note attached to HB18 (2025).

Section R311-203-5 :this rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to local government-owned facilities with APSTs because this rule was reorganized so that the requirements in this rule were clearer.

No additional requirements were added.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

Sections R311-203-2 and R311-203-3: this rule change is expected to have a fiscal cost to small business-owned facilities with APSTs due to the requirement for obtaining a permit for any new APST Installation. This cost is inestimable because it is unknown how many new APST systems will be installed by small businesses. Any additional costs or benefits were estimated in the fiscal note attached to HB18 (2025).

Section R311-203-5: this rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to small business-owned facilities with APSTs because this rule was reorganized so that the requirements in this rule were clearer. No additional requirements were added.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

Sections R311-203-2 and R311-203-3: this rule change is expected to have a fiscal cost to non-small business-owned facilities with APSTs due to the requirement for obtaining a permit for any new APST Installation. This cost is inestimable because it is unknown how many new APST systems will be installed by non-small businesses. Any additional costs or benefits were estimated in the fiscal note attached to HB18 (2025).

Section R311-203-5: This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to non-small business-owned facilities with APSTs because this rule was reorganized so that the requirements in this rule were clearer. No additional requirements were added.

E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

These rule changes are not expected to have any fiscal impact on other persons because the rule changes will not apply to these entities.

## F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule change is expected to have a direct fiscal cost to affected persons who choose to install new APSTs. \$500 per site base fee.

\$200/APST Inspection Fee

\$200/APST Install fee

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

# **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Section 19-6-403 Section 19-6-408

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |
|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |

**B. A public hearing (optional) will be held** (The public may request a hearing by submitting a written request to the agency, as outlined in Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R15-1.):

| Date:      | Time: | Place (physical address or URL):  |
|------------|-------|---|
| 10/15/2025 |       | Multi Agency State Office Building<br>195 N 1950 W<br>Salt Lake City, UT<br>Room 1015 |

# 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/14/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Brent Everett, Director | Date: | 09/11/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                         |       |            |

|                           | NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CH | HANGE            |
|---------------------------|--------------------------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment |                          |                  |
| Rule or section number:   | R311-204                 | Filing ID: 57443 |

### Agency Information

|  | Agency information |   |  |  |
|--|--------------------|---|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Q    | Environmental Quality, Environmental Response and Remediation |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi Agency Sta   | te Office Building  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W       |   |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U  | T 84116   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144840      | PO Box 144840   |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U  | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4840                                 |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:   |   |  |  |
| Name:  | lame: Email:       |   |  |  |
| David Wilson   | 385-251-0893       | djwilson@utah.gov   |  |  |
| Morgan Atkinson  | 801-979-2512       | 801-979-2512 mpatkinson@utah.gov                              |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                    |   |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R311-204. Petroleum Storage Tanks: Closure and Remediation

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 18 (2025 General Session)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

HB 18, Petroleum Storage Tank Amendments, which was passed in the 2025 General Session struck out Subsection 19-6-407(2)(a)(iii) which was referenced in Subsection R311-204-2(1)(a) for the requirement for 30-day notification for closure of APSTs. The requirement for 30-day notification before the closure for Aboveground Petroleum Storage tanks (APSTs) was added to match the requirement for Underground Storage Tanks (USTs).

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R311-204-2(1)(a): HB 18 (2025) struck out Subsection 19-6-407(2)(a)(iii) which is referenced in this rule for the requirement for 30-day notification for closure of APSTs. The requirement for 30-day notification before the closure for Aboveground Petroleum Storage tanks (APSTs) was added to match the requirement for Underground Storage Tanks (USTs).

Subsection R311-204-5(2): Changed "UST remover" to "PST remover" due to the definition change in HB 18 (2025).

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

### A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to state-owned facilities with APSTs because the 30-day notification requirement is currently required and matches the same notification requirement for closure of USTs.

# B. Local governments:

This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to local government-owned facilities with APSTs because the 30-day notification requirement is currently required and matches the same notification requirement for closure of USTs.

### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to small business-owned facilities with APSTs because the 30-day notification requirement is currently required and matches the same notification requirement for closure of USTs.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to non-small business-owned facilities with APSTs because the 30-day notification requirement is currently required and matches the same notification requirement for closure of USTs.

E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

These rule changes are not expected to have any fiscal impacts on other persons because the rule changes will not apply to these entities.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost to affected person-owned facilities with APSTs because the 30-day notification requirement is currently required and matches the same notification requirement for closure of USTs.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requi | rement for the rule, provide a |
|--|--------------------------------|
| citation to that requirement:  |                                |

| ·                |                  |                  |
|------------------|------------------|------------------|
| Section 19-6-105 | Section 19-6-402 | Section 19-6-403 |

#### **Public Notice Information**

# 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

B. A public hearing (optional) will be held (The public may request a hearing by submitting a written request to the agency, as

**B. A public hearing (optional) will be held** (The public may request a hearing by submitting a written request to the agency, as outlined in Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R15-1.):

| Salinea in Section 600 6 602 and rais rate 1.) |       |   |
|--|-------|---|
| Date:  | Time: | Place (physical address or URL):  |
| 10/15/2025                                     |       | Multi Agency State Office Building<br>195 N 1950 W<br>Salt Lake City, UT<br>Room 1015 |

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/14/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

## **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Brent Everett, Director | Date: | 09/11/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                         |       |            |

| NOTI                      | CE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |                  |
|---------------------------|--------------------------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment |                          |                  |
| Rule or section number:   | R311-212                 | Filing ID: 57444 |

# **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Qua             | Environmental Quality, Environmental Response and Remediation |  |  |
|--|-------------------------------|---|--|--|
| Building:  | Multi Agency State            | e Office Building   |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W                  |   |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT            | 84116   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144840                 | PO Box 144840   |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4840 |   |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                               |   |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                        | Email:  |  |  |
| David Wilson   | 385-251-0893                  | djwilson@utah.gov   |  |  |
| Morgan Atkinson  | 801-979-2512                  | mpatkinson@utah.gov   |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                               |   |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R311-212. Administration of the Petroleum Storage Tank Fund Loan Program

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 18 (2025 General Session)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

HB 18, Petroleum Storage Tank Amendments, which was passed in the 2025 General Session made changes that allows owners and operators of Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tanks (APSTs) to apply for loans from the Petroleum Storage Tank Fund Loan Program for the purpose of upgrading, replacing, or permanently closing an APST.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The term "Underground Storage Tanks" (USTs) has been updated to the broader term "Petroleum Storage Tanks" (PSTs) in multiple parts of this rule since "Aboveground Petroleum Storage Tanks" (APSTs) are now permitted to apply for a loan from the

Petroleum Storage Tanks Loan Program. Loan Forms, which were incorporated by reference, were updated by changing the wording "Underground Storage Tanks" to "Petroleum Storage Tanks".

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost or savings to state-owned facilities with APSTs because it is unlikely that state-owned facilities will apply for a 0% interest loan for the purpose of upgrading, replacing, or permanently closing state owned APSTs.

Any additional compliance costs to state government revenues or expenditures were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

# **B. Local governments:**

This rule change is not expected to have a fiscal cost or savings to local government-owned APSTs because it is unlikely that local government-owned facilities will apply for a 0% interest loan for the purpose of upgrading, replacing or repairing local government-owned APSTs.

Any additional compliance costs to local government revenues or expenditures were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This rule change is expected to have a fiscal savings to small businesses-owned facilities with APSTs due to the ability of small businesses to use this 0% interest loan for the purpose of upgrading, replacing, or permanently closing an APST. This savings is inestimable because it is unknown how many small businesses will apply for a loan from the PST Loan Fund.

Any additional compliance costs to small businesses' revenues or expenditures were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This rule change is expected to have a fiscal savings to non-small businesses-owned facilities with APSTs due to the ability of non-small businesses to use this 0% interest loan for the purpose of upgrading, replacing, or permanently closing an APST. This savings is inestimable because it is unknown how many non-small businesses will apply for a loan from the PST Loan Fund.

Any additional compliance costs to non-small businesses' revenues or expenditures were accounted for in the fiscal note attached to HB 18 (2025).

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

These rule changes are not expected to have any fiscal impact on other persons because the rule changes will not apply to these entities.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This rule change is expected to have a direct fiscal savings (0% interest) to affected persons who choose to apply for a PST loan for the purpose of upgrading, replacing, or permanently closing an APST.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory auditation to that requirement: | thority for the rule. If there is also a fed | eral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|---|--|--|
| Section 19-6-105  | Section 19-6-403                             | Section 19-6-409                         |

# Incorporation by Reference Information

| 8. Incorporation by Reference:  |   |  |
|---|---|--|
| <b>A. This rule adds or updates the following title of material incorporated by reference</b> (a copy of the material incorporated by reference must be submitted to the Office of Administrative Rules. <i>If none, leave blank</i> ): |   |  |
| Official Title of Materials Incorporated (from title page)  | Loan Application version 7/31/25  |  |
|   | Utah Department of Environmental Quality Division of Environmental Response and Remediation |  |
| Issue Date  | 7/31/25   |  |

**B.** This rule adds or updates the following title of material incorporated by reference (a copy of the material incorporated by reference must be submitted to the Office of Administrative Rules. *If none, leave blank*):

| Official Title of Materials Incorporated (from title page) | Loan Agreement version 7/31/25  |
|--|---|
| Publisher  | Utah Department of Environmental Quality Division of Environmental Response and Remediation |
| Issue Date   | 7/31/25   |

| <b>C.</b> This rule adds or updates the following title of material incorporated by reference (a copy of the material incorporated by reference must be submitted to the Office of Administrative Rules. <i>If none, leave blank</i> ): |   |  |
|---|---|--|
| Official Title of Materials Incorporated (from title page)  Trust Deed version 7/31/25  |   |  |
| Publisher   | Utah Department of Environmental Quality Division of Environmental Response and Remediation |  |
| Issue Date  | 7/31/25   |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.   |          |   |  |  |
|--|----------|---|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  |          | 10/31/2025  |  |  |
| <b>B. A public hearing (optional) will be held</b> (The public may request a hearing by submitting a written request to the agency, as outlined in Section 63G-3-302 and Rule R15-1.): |          |   |  |  |
| Date: Time:  |          | Place (physical address or URL):  |  |  |
| 10/15/2025   | 02:00 PM | Multi Agency State Office Building<br>195 N 1950 W<br>Salt Lake City, UT<br>Room 1015 |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                      | 11/14/2025  |
|--|---|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the | ne rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Brent Everett, Director | Date: | 09/11/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                         |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R315-260 | Filing ID: 57492 |  |

# **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |                                    |  |  |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|--|
| Building:  | Multi Agency State  | Multi Agency State Office Building |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W  | 195 N 1950 W                       |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT  |                                    |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880   |                                    |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880   |                                    |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |   |                                    |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:  | Email:                             |  |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574  | tball@utah.gov                     |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |                                    |  |  |

# **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-260. Hazardous Waste Management System

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In July of 2024, the EPA finalized rulemaking that integrates e-Manifest with hazardous waste exports and other manifest related reports, PCB manifest amendments, and technical corrections. This rulemaking amended federal regulations found in 40 CFR

260 in response to vacatur of certain provisions of the definition of solid waste that became effective in 2018. The conforming change makes hazardous secondary material export documents available to the public on March 1 of the calendar year after the exports occur.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend Rule R315-260 to conform with the federal regulations.

## 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R315-260-2(d)(1) is being amended to state that after 01/22/2025, a person submitting hazardous secondary material export documents to the EPA cannot make a claim of business confidentiality.

Subsection R315-260-2(d)(2) is being amended to state that after 01/22/2025, EPA will make hazardous secondary material export documents available to the public on March 1 of the calendar year after the exports occur.

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Sections R315-260-1, R315-260-2, and R315-260-10.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because it does not require the state to do anything or stop doing anything with regards to these rules.

Additionally, the Division does not oversee the import or export of hazardous waste, this is handled by the EPA.

#### **B.** Local governments:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because it does not require local governments to do anything or stop doing anything with regards to these rules.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to small businesses that must comply with these rules because it does not require them to do anything or stop doing anything with regards to these rules.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to non-small businesses that must comply with these rules because it does not require them to do anything or stop doing anything with regards to these rules.

E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments that must comply with these rules because it does not require them to do anything or stop doing anything with regards to these rules.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is not anticipated that there will be any additional compliance costs above those costs that are already in place for affected persons who must comply with these rules.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory auditation to that requirement: | thority for the rule. If there is also a fed | eral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|---|--|--|
| Section 19-1-301  | Section 19-6-105                             | Section 19-6-106                         |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |
|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:           | 11/17/2025   |
|---|--|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates | making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |
| Rule or section number:      | R315-261 | Filing ID: 57493 |

# **Agency Information**

| • •                             |   |  |  |
|---------------------------------|---|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:             | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |  |  |
| Building:                       | Multi Agency State Office Building  |  |  |
| Street address:                 | 195 N 1950 W  |  |  |
| City, state: Salt Lake City, UT |   |  |  |

| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880                  |                               |  |
|--|--------------------------------|-------------------------------|--|
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT             | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880 |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:               |                               |  |
| Name:  | Phone: Email:                  |                               |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574                   | tball@utah.gov                |  |
| Kari Lundeen   | 385-499-4923 klundeen@utah.gov |                               |  |
| Please address guestions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                |                               |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-261. General Requirements – Identification and Listing of Hazardous Waste

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In February of 1997, the EPA finalized a rulemaking known as the Military Munitions Rule. Authorized states were not required to adopt this rule because it was considered less stringent than existing regulations. At that time, Utah adopted a few of the rules.

In July of 2023, comments were received from the EPA that Utah should adopt more of the regulations promulgated in the Military Munitions Rule because Utah had begun to regulate military facilities in ways that appeared to be consistent with these regulations. Utah then conducted a review of the proposed regulations in the Military Munitions Rule and it was determined that some, but not all, of the proposed rules should be adopted resulting in an amendment to Rule R315-261.

In July of 2024, the EPA finalized rulemaking that integrates e-Manifest with hazardous waste exports and other manifest related reports, PCB manifest amendments, and technical corrections. This rulemaking amended federal regulations found in 40 CFR 261 in response to vacatur of certain provisions of the definition of solid waste that became effective in 2018. The conforming change removes language allowing for claims of confidentiality for export documents. The amendments clarify the type of address that must be provided on export documents and provide new instructions for documents and processes used for importing and exporting hazardous secondary materials and waste.

In December of 2024, the EPA finalized five regulatory amendments that had been withdrawn from a rulemaking in December of 2023. The amendments made technical corrections to various hazardous waste regulations including some in 40 CFR 261.

In October of 2024, the EPA finalized regulations for the management of certain hydrofluorocarbons and substitutes (ignitable spent refrigerants) under the American Innovation and Manufacturing Act of 2020. This rulemaking included amendments to rules regarding the recycling and disposal hydrofluorocarbons.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend Rule R315-261 to conform with the federal regulations.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R315-261-2(a)(2)(i)(D) is being added to the rule to state that a military munition identified as a solid waste in Section R315-266-202 is a discarded material.

Amendments are being made in Subsections R315-261-4(a)(25) and R315-261-39(a)(5) to state that the site address is required on export documents submitted to the EPA. Subsection R315-261-39(a)(5) is also being amended to update the requirements for submission of export documents.

Subsection R315-261-4(e)(1) is being amended to correct and replace references to other rules that are no longer correct.

Subsection R315-261-6(a)(2) is being amended to update the list of rule references to include new rules being adopted in Rule R315-266 for military munitions and ignitable spent refrigerants.

Subsection R315-261-6(a)(2)(v) is being added to include ignitable spent refrigerants as a recyclable materials and provide references to new rules in Rule R315-266.

Subsections R315-261-6(a)(3)(i)(A) and R315-261-6(a)(3)(i)(B) are being added to provide references to the appropriate rule sections for persons shipping or transporting materials for reclamation in a foreign country.

Sections R315-261-400 and R315-261-420 are being amended to state these rules apply to facilities that receive ignitable spent refrigerants.

The date of the version of Appendix IX adopted in Section R315-261-1093 is being updated to the current version.

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Rule R315-261.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because the state does not manage military munitions, is not an importer or exporter of hazardous waste, and does not recycle ignitable spent refrigerants.

Any costs associated with new rules will be absorbed in the current agency budget.

# **B.** Local governments:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because there are no local governments in Utah that manage military munitions, import or export hazardous waste, or recycle ignitable spent refrigerants.

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to small businesses that must comply with these rules because there are no small businesses in Utah engaged in these activities.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however; compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions will result in any cost or savings to non-small businesses because there are no non-small businesses in Utah engaged in these activities.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however; compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

There are three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste. It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments that must comply with these rules because there are no persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments in Utah engaged in these activities.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however; compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is not anticipated that there will be any additional compliance costs above those costs that are already in place for affected persons who must comply with these rules except for the cost to the three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste.

It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |           |           |           |           |           |
|---------------------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

## **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide | э а |
|--|-----|
| citation to that requirement:  |     |

Section 19-6-105 Section 19-6-106

# **Incorporation by Reference Information**

| 8. Incorporation by Reference:  |                          |  |
|---|--------------------------|--|
| <b>A. This rule adds or updates the following title of material incorporated by reference</b> (a copy of the material incorporated by reference must be submitted to the Office of Administrative Rules. <i>If none, leave blank</i> ): |                          |  |
| Official Title of Materials Incorporated (from title page)  Appendix IX to Part 261 – Wastes Excluded Under 260.20 and 260.22, Table 1  Waste Excluded from Non- Specific Sources   |                          |  |
| Publisher   | United States Government |  |
| Issue Date  | June 17, 2025            |  |

### **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified | l in box 1. |
|--|-------------|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025  |

# 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/17/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |
| Rule or section number:      | R315-262 | Filing ID: 57494 |

#### **Agency Information**

| Agonoy information   |                    |   |  |  |
|--|--------------------|---|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Qu   | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi Agency State | Multi Agency State Office Building  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W       |   |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT |   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880      | PO Box 144880   |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880   |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                    |   |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:             | Email:  |  |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574       | tball@utah.gov  |  |  |
| Kari Lundeen   | 385-499-4923       | 385-499-4923 klundeen@utah.gov  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                    |   |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-262. Hazardous Waste Generator Requirements

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In July of 2024, the EPA finalized rulemaking that integrates e-Manifest with hazardous waste exports and other manifest related reports, PCB manifest amendments, and technical corrections. This rulemaking amended federal regulations found in 40 CFR 262. The amendments require large and small quantity generators of hazardous waste to register with EPA's e-Manifest system. The amendments provide clarity as to when a manifest is required and provide direction on making data corrections to a manifest after it has been submitted to the EPA. Paper manifests are reduced from a five-copy form to a four-copy form.

Beginning in December of 2025, exception reports must be submitted via the e-Manifest system and the requirement for a generator to keep a copy of the report is satisfied by the electronic copy in the e-Manifest system. The timeframes with regard to when generators must contact designated facilities and when exception reports must be submitted are extended.

Exporters of hazardous waste must submit the Electronic Export Information to the Automated Export System for each shipment. The amendments clarify the type of address that must be provided on export documents and provide new instructions for documents and processes used for importing and exporting hazardous secondary materials and waste. The amendments update the requirements for use of a hazardous waste manifest for the export of hazardous waste and the requirements for shipments that cannot be delivered.

In December of 2024, the EPA finalized five regulatory amendments that had been withdrawn from a rulemaking in December of 2023. The amendments made technical corrections to various hazardous waste regulations including some in 40 CFR 262.

In October of 2024, the EPA finalized regulations for the management of certain hydrofluorocarbons and substitutes (ignitable spent refrigerants) under the American Innovation and Manufacturing Act of 2020. This rulemaking included amendments to rules regarding the recycling and disposal hydrofluorocarbons.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend Rule R315-262 to conform with the federal regulations.

### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R315-262-14(a)(5)(vi)(B) is amended to include facilities that meet the requirements of Sections R315-266-600 through R315-266-602.

Subsection R315-262-16(b)(1) is amended to include the limit for acute hazardous waste.

Subsections R315-262-17(a)(8)(i) and (i)(A) and (i)(B) are amended to provide clarification regarding notices for closure of a waste accumulation unit.

Subsection R315-262-20(a)(1) is amended to require large and small quantity generators to register with the EPA's e-Manifest system.

Subsection R315-262-20(a)(2) is amended to provide requirements for post-receipt manifest data corrections.

Subsections R315-262-21(f)(5), (6), and (7) are amended to incorporate changes to the paper manifest.

Subsection R315-262-24(h) is deleted because it was moved to Subsection R315-262-20(a)(2).

Subsection R315-262-42(a)(1) is amended to extend the number of days from 35 to 45 before a generator must contact the designated facility because the generator has not received the signed copy of the manifest.

Subsection R315-262-42(a)(2) is amended to extend the number of days from 45 to 60 before a large quantity generator must submit an exception report.

Subsection R315-262-42(a)(3) is added to the rules and contains the requirement for large quantity generators exception reports to be submitted electronically via the e-Manifest system beginning on 12/01/2025. The language details what must be included in the report.

Subsection R315-262-42(b) is amended by adding (2) that contains the requirement for small quantity generators exception reports to be submitted electronically via the e-Manifest system beginning on 12/01/2025.

Subsection R315-262-42(c)(2) is amended because of the changes in timeframes in R315-262-42(a)(1).

Subsections R315-262-42(d)(1) and (2) are added to the rules stating that any requirement for a generator to keep a copy of an exception report is satisfied by the electronic report in the e-Manifest system and generators cannot be held liable for the inability to produce an electronic report for inspection due to technical difficulties with the e-Manifest system.

Section R315-262-83 is amended in several subsections with updates to the processes for exporting hazardous waste to include new requirements for electronic reporting and use of the e-Manifest system by exporters of hazardous waste.

Section R315-262-84 is amended in several subsections updating the type of information that is reported on export documents and the requirements for how to submit the information.

Subsection R315-262-84(c)(4) is amended with new requirements for shipments that cannot be delivered.

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Rule R315-262.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because the state is not an importer or exporter of hazardous waste and does not recycle ignitable spent refrigerants.

Additionally, the Division does not oversee the import or export of hazardous waste, this is handled by the EPA.

#### B. Local governments:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because there are no local governments in Utah that import or export hazardous waste, or recycle ignitable spent refrigerants.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to small businesses that must comply with these rules because there are no small businesses in Utah engaged in these activities.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however; compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings for non-small businesses engaged in these activities, however; compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

There are three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste. It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

# E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments that must comply with these rules because there are no persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments in Utah engaged in these activities.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however; compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is not anticipated that there will be any additional compliance costs above those costs that are already in place for affected persons who must comply with these rules except for the cost to the three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste.

It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

# **G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

|  | Regulatory Impact Summary Table |         |         |         |         |
|--|---------------------------------|---------|---------|---------|---------|
| Fiscal Cost FY2026 FY2027 FY2028 FY2029 FY2030 |                                 |         |         |         |         |
| State Budget                                   | \$0                             | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     |
| Local Governments                              | \$0                             | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     |
| Small Businesses                               | \$0                             | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     |
| Non-Small Businesses                           | \$3,744                         | \$3,744 | \$3,744 | \$3,744 | \$3,744 |
| Other Persons                                  | \$0                             | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     | \$0     |
| Total Fiscal Cost                              | \$3,744                         | \$3,744 | \$3,744 | \$3,744 | \$3,744 |

| Fiscal Benefits       | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
|-----------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| State Budget          | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments     | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses      | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses  | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Other Persons         | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Benefits | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Net Fiscal Benefits   | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |                  |  |  |
|--|------------------|--|--|
| Section 19-6-105   | Section 19-6-106 |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |
|--|------------|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: | 11/17/2025 |
|---|------------|
|---|------------|

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE                      |  |  |  |  |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment                         |  |  |  |  |
| Rule or section number: R315-263 Filing ID: 57495 |  |  |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |                                    |  |  |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|--|
| Building:  | Multi Agency State  | Multi Agency State Office Building |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W  | 195 N 1950 W                       |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT  |                                    |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880   | PO Box 144880                      |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880   |                                    |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:  |                                    |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:  | Email:                             |  |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574  | tball@utah.gov                     |  |  |
| Kari Lundeen   | 385-499-4923 klundeen@utah.gov  |                                    |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |                                    |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-263. Standards Applicable to Transporters of Hazardous Waste and Standards Applicable to Emergency Control of Spills for Any Hazardous Waste Handlers

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In February of 1997, the EPA finalized a rulemaking known as the Military Munitions Rule. Authorized states were not required to adopt this rule because it was considered less stringent than existing regulations. At that time, Utah adopted a few of the rules.

In July of 2023, comments were received from the EPA that Utah should adopt more of the regulations promulgated in the Military Munitions Rule because Utah had begun to regulate military facilities in ways that appeared to be consistent with these regulations. Utah then conducted a review of the proposed regulations in the Military Munitions Rule and it was determined that some, but not all, of the proposed rules should be adopted resulting in an amendment to Rule R315-263.

In July of 2024, the EPA finalized rulemaking that integrates e-Manifest with hazardous waste imports and exports and other manifest related reports, PCB manifest amendments, and technical corrections. This rulemaking amended federal regulations found in 40 CFR 263.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend Rule R315-263 to conform with the federal regulations.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Language is added at Subsection R315-263-10(f) to state that Section R315-266-203 identifies how the requirements of Rule R315-263 apply to military munitions classified as solid waste.

Subsection R315-263-20(a)(2) is amended to remove a requirement that is outdated.

Subsection R315-263-20(a)(9) is amended to update the requirements for post-receipt manifest data corrections.

Subsection R315-263-20(c) is amended to remove outdated requirements.

Subsection R315-263-20(g) is amended to update manifest requirements for transporters who transport hazardous waste out of the United States

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Rule R315-263.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because the state does not manage military munitions and is not an importer or exporter of hazardous waste.

Additionally, the Division does not oversee the import or export of hazardous waste, this is handled by the EPA.

# B. Local governments:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because there are no local governments in Utah that manage military munitions or import or export hazardous waste.

## C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to small businesses that must comply with these rules because there are no small businesses in Utah engaged in these activities

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste. It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments that must comply with these rules because there are no persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments in Utah engaged in these activities.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |           |           |           |           |           |
|---------------------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a |  |
|--|--|
| citation to that requirement:  |  |

Section 19-6-105 Section 19-6-106

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

# 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/17/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R315-264 | Filing ID: 57496 |  |

#### **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |   |                                    |  |  |  |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |                                    |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi Agency State  | Multi Agency State Office Building |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W  | 195 N 1950 W                       |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT  |                                    |  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880   | PO Box 144880                      |  |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880   |                                    |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |   |                                    |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:  | Email:                             |  |  |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574  | tball@utah.gov                     |  |  |  |
| Kari Lundeen   | 385-499-4923 klundeen@utah.gov  |                                    |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |                                    |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-264. Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In February of 1997, the EPA finalized a rulemaking known as the Military Munitions Rule. Authorized states were not required to adopt this rule because it was considered less stringent than existing regulations. At that time, Utah adopted a few of the rules.

In July of 2023, comments were received from the EPA that Utah should adopt more of the regulations promulgated in the Military Munitions Rule because Utah had begun to regulate military facilities in ways that appeared to be consistent with these regulations. Utah then conducted a review of the proposed regulations in the Military Munitions Rule and it was determined that some, but not all, of the proposed rules should be adopted resulting in an amendment to Rule R315-264.

In July of 2024, the EPA finalized rulemaking that integrates e-Manifest with hazardous waste imports and exports and other manifest related reports, PCB manifest amendments, and technical corrections. This rulemaking amended federal regulations found in 40 CFR 264.

In December of 2024, the EPA finalized five regulatory amendments that had been withdrawn from a rulemaking in December of 2023. The amendments made technical corrections to various hazardous waste regulations including some in 40 CFR 264.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend R315-264 to conform with the federal regulations.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R315-264-1(i) is amended to add language stating that the Section R315-266-205 identifies when Rule R315-264 applies to the storage of military munitions classified as hazardous waste.

#### NOTICES OF PROPOSED RULES

This rule also states that treatment and disposal of hazardous waste military munitions are subject to the applicable permitting, procedural, and technical standards of Rules R315-260 through R315-270.

Subsections R315-264-12(a)(2) and (4) are being amended to update the requirements for management of movement documents for the tracking of import and export of hazardous waste.

Subsection R315-264-71(a)(2) is being amended to remove manifest requirements that are outdated.

Subsection R315-264-71(a)(3) is being amended to update and clarify the information required to be listed on a hazardous waste manifest for imports and exports of hazardous waste.

Subsections R315-264-71(b)(4) and R315-264-71(d) are being amended to update the requirements for management of manifests and movement documents for the tracking of import and export of hazardous waste.

Subsection R315-264-71(d)(1) is being added to provide the requirements for post-receipt manifest data corrections.

Subsection R315-264-72(c) is being amended to add the requirement to submit discrepancy reports via the e-Manifest system beginning on 12/01/2025.

Subsection R315-264-72(g) is being amended to remove the requirement for facilities to send an amended manifest to a transporter and to state that transporters can access a copy of the amended manifest in the e-Manifest system.

Subsection R315-264-76(b) is being added to the rules to provide the requirements for electronic submission of unmanifested waste reports via the e-Manifest system beginning on 12/01/2025.

Sections R315-264-1200 through R315-264-1202 are being added to provide requirements for the storage of munitions and explosives hazardous waste.

Sections R315-264-1103 through R315-264-1107 are being renumbered due to the addition of Sections R315-264-1200 through R315-264-1202.

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Rule R315-264.

#### **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because the state does not manage military munitions and is not an importer or exporter of hazardous waste.

## B. Local governments:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because there are no local governments in Utah that manage military munitions or import or export hazardous waste.

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to small businesses that must comply with this rule because there are no small businesses in Utah engaged in these activities.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste. It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments that must comply with these rules because there are no persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments in Utah engaged in these activities.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is not anticipated that there will be any additional compliance costs above those costs that are already in place for affected persons who must comply with these rules except for the cost to the three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste.

It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |           |           |           |           |           |
|---------------------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| <b>Total Fiscal Cost</b>        | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide | а |
|--|---|
| citation to that requirement:  |   |

Section 19-6-105 Section 19-6-106

# **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on:

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R315-265 | Filing ID: 57497 |  |  |

#### Agency Information

| Agency information   |   |                                    |  |  |  |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |                                    |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi Agency State  | Multi Agency State Office Building |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W  |                                    |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT  |                                    |  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880   | PO Box 144880                      |  |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880   |                                    |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |   |                                    |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:  | Email:                             |  |  |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574  | tball@utah.gov                     |  |  |  |
| Kari Lundeen   | 385-499-4923 klundeen@utah.gov  |                                    |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |                                    |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-265. Interim Status Standards for Owners and Operators of Hazardous Waste Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In February of 1997, the EPA finalized a rulemaking known as the Military Munitions Rule. Authorized states were not required to adopt this rule because it was considered less stringent than existing regulations. At that time, Utah adopted a few of the rules.

In July of 2023, comments were received from the EPA that Utah should adopt more of the regulations promulgated in the Military Munitions Rule because Utah had begun to regulate military facilities in ways that appeared to be consistent with these regulations. Utah then conducted a review of the proposed regulations in the Military Munitions Rule and it was determined that some, but not all, of the proposed rules should be adopted resulting in an amendment to Rule R315-265.

In July of 2024, the EPA finalized rulemaking that integrates e-Manifest with hazardous waste imports and exports and other manifest related reports, PCB manifest amendments, and technical corrections. This rulemaking amended federal regulations found in 40 CFR 265.

In December of 2024, the EPA finalized five regulatory amendments that had been withdrawn from a rulemaking in December of 2023. The amendments made technical corrections to various hazardous waste regulations including some in 40 CFR 265.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend Rule R315-265 to conform with the federal regulations.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R315-265-1(f) is being added to the rule to add language stating that the Section R315-266-205 identifies when Rule R315-265 applies to the storage of military munitions classified as hazardous waste.

The rule also states that treatment and disposal of hazardous waste military munitions are subject to the applicable permitting, procedural, and technical standards of Rules R315-260 through R315-270.

Subsections R315-265-12(a)(2) and (4) are being amended to update the requirements for management of movement documents for the tracking of import and export of hazardous waste.

Subsection R315-265-71(a)(2) is being amended to remove manifest requirements that are outdated.

Subsection R315-265-71(a)(3) is being amended to update and clarify the information required to be listed on a hazardous waste manifest for imports and exports of hazardous waste.

Subsections R315-265-71(b)(4) and (d) are being amended to update the requirements for management of manifests and movement documents for the tracking of import and export of hazardous waste.

Subsection R315-265-71(I) is being added to provide the requirements for post-receipt manifest data corrections.

Subsection R315-265-72(c) is being amended to add the requirement to submit discrepancy reports via the e-Manifest system beginning on 12/01/2025, and to provide an additional 5 days for submission increasing the number of days from 15 to 20.

Subsection R315-265-72(g) is being amended to remove the requirement for facilities to send an amended manifest to a transporter and to state that transporters can access a copy of the amended manifest in the e-Manifest system.

Subsection R315-265-76(a) is being amended to provide the requirements for electronic submission of unmanifested waste reports via the e-Manifest system beginning on December 1, 2025.

Sections R315-265-1200 and R315-265-1202 are being added to provide requirements for the storage of munitions and explosives hazardous waste.

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Rule R315-265.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because the state does not manage military munitions and is not an importer or exporter of hazardous waste.

# B. Local governments:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because there are no local governments in Utah that manage military munitions or import or export hazardous waste.

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to small businesses that must comply with this rule because there are no small businesses in Utah engaged in these activities.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There are three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste. It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions or import and export of hazardous waste will result in any cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments that must comply with this rule because there are no persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments in Utah engaged in these activities.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is not anticipated that there will be any additional compliance costs above those costs that are already in place for affected persons who must comply with this rule except for the cost to the three non-small businesses in Utah that are importers of hazardous waste.

It is estimated that the amendments to the rules regarding the import and export of hazardous waste could cost these businesses approximately \$3,744 annually.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |           |           |           |           |           |
|---------------------------------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   | \$3,744   |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026    | FY2027    | FY2028    | FY2029    | FY2030    |
| State Budget                    | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Local Governments               | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Small Businesses                | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Other Persons                   | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       | \$0       |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) | \$(3,744) |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |                  |  |  |
|--|------------------|--|--|
| Section 19-6-105   | Section 19-6-106 |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:             | 11/17/2025   |
|---|--|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates m | aking the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE                      |  |  |  |  |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment                         |  |  |  |  |
| Rule or section number: R315-266 Filing ID: 57498 |  |  |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |                               |   |  |  |
|--|-------------------------------|---|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Qu              | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |  |  |
| Building:  | Multi Agency State            | Multi Agency State Office Building  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W                  |   |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT            | Salt Lake City, UT  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880                 | PO Box 144880   |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880 |   |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                               |   |  |  |
| Name:  | me: Phone: Email:             |   |  |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574                  | tball@utah.gov  |  |  |
| Kari Lundeen 385-499-4923 klundeen@utah.gov  |                               |   |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                               |   |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-266. Standards for the Management of Specific Hazardous Wastes and Specific Types of Hazardous Waste Management Facilities

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In February of 1997, the EPA finalized a rulemaking known as the Military Munitions Rule. Authorized states were not required to adopt this rule because it was considered less stringent than existing regulations. At that time, Utah adopted a few of the rules.

In July of 2023, comments were received from the EPA that Utah should adopt more of the regulations promulgated in the Military Munitions Rule because Utah had begun to regulate military facilities in ways that appeared to be consistent with these regulations. Utah then conducted a review of the proposed regulations in the Military Munitions Rule and it was determined that some, but not all, of the proposed rules should be adopted resulting in an amendment to Rule R315-266.

In December of 2024, the EPA finalized five regulatory amendments that had been withdrawn from a rulemaking in December of 2023. The amendments made technical corrections to various hazardous waste regulations including some in 40 CFR 266.

In October of 2024, the EPA finalized regulations for the management of certain hydrofluorocarbons and substitutes (ignitable spent refrigerants) under the American Innovation and Manufacturing Act of 2020. This rulemaking included amendments to rules regarding the recycling and disposal hydrofluorocarbons.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend Rule R315-266 to conform with the federal regulations.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Section R315-266-200 was added to the rule to specify that the requirements in Sections R315-266-200 through R315-266-206 are applicable to military munitions.

Section R315-266-201 adds definitions to the rule that apply to military munitions.

Subsections R315-266-202(a) through (c) were added to define when a military munition becomes a solid waste and when a military munition is not a solid waste.

Sections R315-266-203 through R315-266-204 were added to provide standards for the transportation, emergency response actions, storage, and treatment and disposal of military munitions.

#### NOTICES OF PROPOSED RULES

Subsection R315-266-508(a)(2)(ii) was amended to clarify that healthcare facilities may also include applicable EPA hazardous waste numbers on a hazardous waste manifest.

Sections R315-266-600 through R315-266-602 were added to the rule to provide the requirements for recycling and reuse of ignitable spent refrigerants.

Sections R315-266-600, through R315-266-611 are being renumbered due to the adoption of the rules for ignitable spent refrigerants.

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Rule R315-266.

#### **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because the state does not manage military munitions and does not recycle ignitable spent refrigerants.

Any costs associated with new rules will be absorbed in the current agency budget.

#### B. Local governments:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because there are no local governments in Utah that manage military munitions or recycle ignitable spent refrigerants.

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions will result in any cost or savings to small businesses because there are no small businesses in Utah engaged in this activity.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however, compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions will result in any cost or savings to non-small businesses because there are no non-small businesses in Utah engaged in these activities.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however; compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

It is not anticipated that the rulemaking regarding military munitions will result in any cost or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments that must comply with these rules because there are no persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state or local governments in Utah engaged in this activity.

It is anticipated that the new rules regarding management of spent ignitable refrigerants will result in cost savings, however, compliance with the new rules is voluntary and it is unknown how many of the entities affected by the rule amendments will choose to comply with the new rules so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings for any entity that chooses to comply with the new rules.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is not anticipated that there will be any additional compliance costs above those costs that are already in place for affected persons who must comply with these rules.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

# **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |                  |  |  |  |
|--|------------------|--|--|--|
| Section 19-6-105   | Section 19-6-106 |  |  |  |

#### **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                      | 11/17/2025  |
|--|---|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the | ne rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |          |                  |
|------------------------------|----------|------------------|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |          |                  |
| Rule or section number:      | R315-270 | Filing ID: 57499 |

#### **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Environmental Qua              | Environmental Quality, Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management |  |  |
|--|--------------------------------|---|--|--|
| Building:  | Multi Agency State             | Multi Agency State Office Building  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 195 N 1950 W                   | 195 N 1950 W  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT             |   |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144880                  |   |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4880  |   |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                                |   |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                         | Email:  |  |  |
| Tom Ball   | 385-454-5574 tball@utah.gov    |   |  |  |
| Kari Lundeen   | 385-499-4923 klundeen@utah.gov |   |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                |   |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R315-270. Hazardous Waste Permit Program

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In July of 2024, the EPA finalized rulemaking that integrates e-Manifest with hazardous waste exports and other manifest related reports, PCB manifest amendments, and technical corrections. This rulemaking amended federal regulations found in 40 CFR 270.

In October of 2024, the EPA finalized regulations for the management of certain hydrofluorocarbons and substitutes (ignitable spent refrigerants) under the American Innovation and Manufacturing Act of 2020. This rulemaking included amendments to rules regarding the recycling and disposal hydrofluorocarbons.

As an authorized state, Utah is required to maintain a program that is equivalent to the federal program and therefore, must amend Rule R315-270 to conform with the federal regulations.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Subsection R315-270-1(c)(2)(ix) adds recyclers of ignitable spent refrigerants to the list of persons not required to get a hazardous waste permit.

Subsection R315-270-30(I)(7) is being amended to update the requirements for submission of manifest discrepancy reports and to add requirements for unmanifested waste reports.

Additionally, the Division of Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management (Division) is correcting typographical and formatting errors in Rule R315-270.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to the state budget because it does not add or remove any requirements for state agencies.

#### **B. Local governments:**

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any cost or savings to local governments because there are no local governments in Utah that recycle ignitable spent refrigerants or would need to submit manifest discrepancy or unmanifested waste reports.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any costs to small businesses that must comply with this rule because the amendments do not add any new requirements for small businesses in Utah.

It is anticipated that the amended rules could result in cost savings resulting from the move to submit reports electronically, however, it is not possible to determine how many facilities will need to submit manifest discrepancy reports or unmanifested waste reports because these reports are only submitted when required and not on a regular basis so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings that may result.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any costs to non-small businesses that must comply with this rule because the amendments do not add any new requirements for non-small businesses in Utah.

It is anticipated that the amended rules could result in cost savings resulting from the move to submit reports electronically, however, it is not possible to determine how many facilities will need to submit manifest discrepancy reports or unmanifested waste reports because these reports are only submitted when required and not on a regular basis so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings that may result.

# E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

It is not anticipated that this rulemaking will result in any costs to small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local governments that must comply with this rule because the amendments do not add any new requirements for small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local governments in Utah.

It is anticipated that the amended rules could result in cost savings resulting from the move to submit reports electronically, however, it is not possible to determine how many facilities will need to submit manifest discrepancy reports or unmanifested waste reports because these reports are only submitted when required and not on a regular basis so it is not possible for the Division to determine the cost savings that may result.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It is not anticipated that there will be any additional compliance costs above those costs that are already in place for affected persons who must comply with this rule.

# **G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| · ·                             |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Environmental Quality, Tim Davis, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory aut | thority for the rule. | If there is also a f | federal requiremen | nt for the rule, | provide a |
|---|-----------------------|----------------------|--------------------|------------------|-----------|
| citation to that requirement:             |                       |                      |                    |                  |           |
|   |                       |                      |                    |                  |           |

Section 19-6-105 Section 19-6-106

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/17/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Douglas J. Hansen, Director | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |         |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|---------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |         |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R357-13 | Filing ID: 57464 |  |  |

#### **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |                                |                    |  |  |
|--|--------------------------------|--------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Governor, Economic Opportunity |                    |  |  |
| Building:  | World Trade Cente              | World Trade Center |  |  |
| Street address:  | 60 E South Temple, Suite 300   |                    |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84111       |                    |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                                |                    |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                         | Email:             |  |  |
| Greg Jeffs 801-368-1957 gjeffs@utah.gov  |                                |                    |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                |                    |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R357-13. Hotel Convention Center Incentive

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: SB 26 (2025 General Session)

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

SB 26, passed in the 2025 General Session, amends Section 63N-2-512. These changes will align this rule with those amendments. SB 26 (2025) adds the following to Section 63N-2-512:

"City-wide event" means an event hosted at a convention facility pursuant to a contract by a nonprofit corporation responsible for the promotion of convention business.

"Qualified losses" means revenue lost by an affected hotel for city-wide events attributable to the qualified hotel room supply being added to the market in the state.

In accordance with office rules and Subsection (6), the Governor's Office of Economic Opportunity (GOEO) shall annually pay \$2,100,000 from the mitigation fund to affected hotels to mitigate qualified losses.

Each calendar year, GOEO shall award the available \$2,100,000 to affected hotels proportionally, according to each affected hotel's qualified losses in relation to the total qualified losses suffered collectively by all affected hotels.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The changes integrate SB 26's (2025) amendments for "city-wide event" and "qualified losses" into this rule.

It also adopts calendar year dates.

These changes affect how staff of the GOEO perform their duties. There are also nonsubstantive changes to correct numbering, grammar, and punctuation.

(EDITOR'S NOTE: A corresponding emergency (120-day) rule filing for Rule R357-13 that is effective as of 09/05/2025 is under ID 57463 in this issue, October 1, 2025, of the Bulletin.)

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

No anticipated costs or savings.

This rule will not affect state budget as it is implementing Section 63N-2-512 and does not create or reduce any costs associated with Section 63N-2-512. This is because clarifying definitions and specifying time tables does not create costs.

#### **B.** Local governments:

No anticipated costs or savings.

This rule change will not increase or decrease costs to local governments because it does not require anything of local governments.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

No anticipated costs or savings.

This rule change will not increase or decrease costs to small businesses because it does not require anything of small businesses.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

No anticipated costs or savings.

This rule change will not increase or decrease costs to non-small businesses because it does not require anything of them.

E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

No anticipated costs or savings.

This rule change will not increase or decrease costs to other persons because it does not require anything of them.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

No anticipated costs or savings.

The affected persons are primarily the staff of the GOEO, as these changes affect how they perform their duties. The cost does not change because the change does not increase the amount of duties, it only changes current duties.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Governor's Office of Economic Opportunity, Jefferson Moss, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory au citation to that requirement: | thority for the rule. If there is also a fed | eral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|--|--|--|
| Section 63N-2-512.   | Subsection 63G-3-403(3)                      |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                  | 11/07/2025   |
|--|--|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making | the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Jefferson Moss, Executive Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|------------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                    |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |        |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|--------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |        |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R628-4 | Filing ID: 57489 |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

|                     | <u> </u>                                 |  |  |  |
|---------------------|--|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline: | Money Management Council, Administration |  |  |  |
| Building:           | State Capitol Building                   |  |  |  |
| Street address:     | 350 N State Street, Suite 150            |  |  |  |
| City, state:        | Salt Lake City, UT                       |  |  |  |

| Mailing address:   | PO Box 2315       | PO Box 2315                   |  |  |
|--|-------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-2315 |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                   |                               |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Email:                        |  |  |
| Ann Pedroza  | 801-538-1883      | apedroza@utah.gov             |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |                               |  |  |

#### **General Information**

| 2. | Rul | le | or | section | on | cato | :hl | line: |
|----|-----|----|----|---------|----|------|-----|-------|
|----|-----|----|----|---------|----|------|-----|-------|

R628-4. Bonding of Public Treasurers

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 64 (2025 General Session)

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

HB 64, passed in the 2025 General Session, removed the wording to allow bonds so this change needs to be reflected in the rule.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This filing removes any reference to fidelity bonds or bonds in this rule.

#### **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

No anticipated cost or savings to the state budget. Bond or Insurance coverage has been required and figured into budgets; the change would be minimal.

#### **B. Local governments:**

No anticipated cost or savings to local governments. Bond or Insurance coverage has been continuously required and included in budgets so the change would be minimal.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

No cost or change to small businesses as this rule covers public entities.

D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

No cost or change to non-small businesses as this rule cover public entities.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

No compliance costs for other persons as this rule only covers public entities.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

No compliance costs as most treasurers are already taking advantage of the ability to use this type of insurance coverage instead of surety or fidelity bonds since the Money Management Act was changed to allow insurance in 2017.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |  |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |  |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |  |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Council Vice Chair of the Money Management Council, Scott R Burnett, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|
| Section 51-7-15  |  |  |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |
|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                  | 11/07/2025  |
|--|---|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making | the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Scott R Burnett, Vice Chair | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |         |                  |  |
|------------------------------|---------|------------------|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |         |                  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R628-12 | Filing ID: 57490 |  |

# **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline: | Money Management Council, Administration |  |
|---------------------|--|--|
| Building:           | State Capitol Building                   |  |
| Street address:     | 350 N State Street, Suite 180            |  |
| City, state:        | Salt Lake City, UT                       |  |

| Mailing address:   | PO Box 2315       | PO Box 2315                   |  |  |
|--|-------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-2315 |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                   |                               |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Phone: Email:                 |  |  |
| Ann Pedroza  | 801-538-1883      | apedroza@utah.gov             |  |  |
| Candace Castor   | 801-538-1883      | 801-538-1883 ccastor@utah.gov |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |                               |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R628-12. Certification of Qualified Depositories for Public Funds

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: HB 360 (2025 General Session)

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

HB 360, passed in the 2025 General Session, requires that the Utah State Treasurer's Office work with Utah Housing Corporation (UHC) to place public funds on deposit with the corporation through a linked-deposit program to allow the agency to fund the development of affordable housing.

In order to hold public funds deposits, the rule governing qualified depositories had to be changed to make it clear that such deposits with UHC comport with the Money Management Act.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This rule makes UHC a qualified depository for purposes of the Money Management Act, thus allowing the state to place public funds on deposit with UHC.

#### **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

The change will not affect the state budget.

The change is to list the UHC as a qualified depository for purposes of the linked deposit program with UHC.

# **B. Local governments:**

There will be no cost or savings to local businesses.

The change adds UHC as a qualified depository for purposes of the linked deposit program and does not involve local government entities.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

There will be no cost or savings to local businesses.

The change adds UHC as a qualified depository and does not involve small businesses.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There will be no cost or savings to non-small businesses as this change adds UHC as a qualified depository and does not involve non-small businesses.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

There will be no cost or savings to other entities.

This change adds UHC as a qualified depository and does not involve other persons.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

There is no cost for affected persons.

This change adds UHC as a qualified depository and does not involve other persons.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

## H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Vice Chairman of the Utah Money Management Council, Scott Burnett, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

# **Citation Information**

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide | а |
|--|---|
| citation to that requirement:  |   |

Subsection 51-12-101(6)

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                      | 11/07/2025  |
|--|---|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the | ne rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date. |

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Scott Burnett, Vice Chair | Date: | 09/12/2025 |
|---------------------|---------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                           |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE                        |  |  |  |  |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment                           |  |  |  |  |
| Rule or section number: R861-1A-26 Filing ID: 57507 |  |  |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |                                |                |  |  |
|--|--------------------------------|----------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Tax Commission, Administration |                |  |  |
| Building:  | Tax Commission                 | Tax Commission |  |  |
| Street address:  | 210 N 1950 W                   | 210 N 1950 W   |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT             |                |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                                |                |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone: Email:                  |                |  |  |
| Chantay Asper  | 801-297-3901 casper@utah.gov   |                |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                |                |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R861-1A-26. Procedures for Formal Adjudicative Proceedings Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Sections 59-1-501 and 63G-4-204 through 63G-4-209

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

Current appeals procedure described in Section R861-1A-26 require some updates and streamlining.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Section R861-1A-26 details the procedure of a commission appeal, including the use of electronic and in-person proceedings and continuances. The rule amendment changes an appeal's default from an in-person proceeding to an electronic proceeding, but provides that a party may request an in-person hearing at the time of filing a petition or no later than two weeks before a hearing, or, for an expedited hearing, no later than three business days before the hearing.

A presiding officer also has discretion to waive an in-person hearing request deadline for good cause. With regard to continuances, the rule amendment removes the limitation on the number of continuances allowed in an appeal, requiring instead that a continuance must be approved by at least one commissioner.

The rule preserves the requirement that adequate cause must be shown to continue a proceeding.

Additionally, the rule amendment specifies that a party may be subject to default if party requests a continuance that is denied and the party fails to participate in the originally scheduled proceeding.

Finally, the rule amendment repeals the option for the commission to provide notice to parties by facsimile, because facsimile is largely obsolete.

## **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

#### A. State budget:

This amendment is not expected to impact the state budget because it makes changes to the appeals process within the constraints of authorizing statutes.

#### B. Local governments:

This amendment is not expected to impact local governments because it makes changes to the appeals process within the constraints of authorizing statutes.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This amendment is not expected to impact small businesses because it makes changes to the appeals process within the constraints of authorizing statutes.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This amendment is not expected to impact non-small businesses because it makes changes to the appeals process within the constraints of authorizing statutes.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

This amendment is not expected to impact persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local governments because it makes changes to the appeals process within the constraints of authorizing statutes.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This amendment is not expected to impose additional compliance costs on affected persons because it makes changes to the appeals process within the constraints of authorizing statutes.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

A Commissioner of the Tax Commission, Rebecca L. Rockwell, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

| Section 59-1-501 | Sections 63G-4-204 through 63G-4-209 |
|------------------|--------------------------------------|

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

# 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Rebecca Rockwell, Commissioner | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |            |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|------------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |            |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R861-1A-34 | Filing ID: 57508 |  |  |

#### **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Tax Commission,   | Tax Commission, Administration |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--------------------------------|--|--|
| Building:  | Tax Commission    | Tax Commission                 |  |  |
| Street address:  | 210 N 1950 W      | 210 N 1950 W                   |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT             |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:  |                                |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Phone: Email:                  |  |  |
| Chantay Asper  | 801-297-3901      | 801-297-3901 casper@utah.gov   |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |                                |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R861-1A-34. Private Letter Rulings Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 59-1-210

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The existing section language needs clarification.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Section R861-1A-34 outlines the proper use of a private letter ruling issued by the commission. The rule amendment removes the ability of a party to resubmit the same private letter ruling request after a ruling on that request.

The amendment also rewrites the language of the section to emphasize that a party must address a justiciable controversy that arises from a private letter ruling through the appeals process.

For any other challenge to a private letter ruling, the amendment outlines the correct process as submitting a petition for a declaratory order, outside of the appeals process, within 30 days. Such a petition must be heard by at least one commissioner with any applicable division appearing as an interested party.

# **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

This amendment is not expected to impact the state budget because it doesn't make substantive changes to existing regulation.

#### **B.** Local governments:

This amendment is not expected to impact local governments because it doesn't make substantive changes to existing regulation.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This amendment is not expected to impact small businesses because it doesn't make substantive changes to existing regulation.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This amendment is not expected to impact non-small businesses because it doesn't make substantive changes to existing regulation.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This amendment is not expected to impact persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local governments because it doesn't make substantive changes to existing rule language.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This amendment is not expected to impose additional compliance costs on affected persons because it doesn't make substantive changes to existing rule language.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

A Commissioner of the Tax Commission, Rebecca L. Rockwell, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

## **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Section 59-1-210

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until:

10/31/2025

# 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Rebecca Rockwell, Commissioner | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                |       |            |

| 1                         | NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |                  |  |  |
|---------------------------|------------------------------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment |                              |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:   | R884-24P-19                  | Filing ID: 57510 |  |  |

#### **Agency Information**

| rigency internation  |                              |                              |  |  |
|--|------------------------------|------------------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Tax Commission, F            | Tax Commission, Property Tax |  |  |
| Building:  | Tax Commission               | Fax Commission               |  |  |
| Street address:  | 210 N 1950 W                 | 210 N 1950 W                 |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT           |                              |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:             |                              |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone: Email:                |                              |  |  |
| Chantay Asper  | 801-297-3901 casper@utah.gov |                              |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                              |                              |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R884-24P-19. Appraiser Designation Program Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Sections 59-2-701 and 59-2-702

#### 3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?

Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: SB 202 (2025 General Session)

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

In the 2025 General Session, the Legislature passed SB 202, Property Tax Revisions, sponsored by Senator Chris Wilson.

The bill requires that the commission confer a designation of completion on a hearing officer that completes a statutorily required hearing officer education and training program.

The bill also requires the commission to develop and administer an education and training program for county officers who are statutorily required to participate in a county board of equalization, and confer a designation of completion upon a participant's completion.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Section R884-24P-19 currently contains the requirements for the appraisal personnel education and training program at the commission.

The rule amendment adds two new designations to this section to fulfill the new statutory requirements described above.

These new designations are a hearing officer designation and a county property tax designation for county officers and related staff who are involved with property valuation.

County officers and related staff include members of a county legislative body, county auditors, employees of a county auditor or county assessor, or employees who oversee tax sales.

It also creates a greenbelt specialist designation to train individuals who value greenbelt property. For each of the new designations, the rule amendment specifies the courses and related requirements necessary to obtain and maintain the designation.

#### **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

This amendment is not expected to impact the state budget because any changes to the appraisal personnel and other designation programs with a fiscal impact would have been considered in the authorizing legislation.

#### **B.** Local governments:

This amendment is not expected to impact local governments because any changes to the appraisal personnel and other designation programs with a fiscal impact would have been considered in the authorizing legislation.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

This amendment is not expected to impact small businesses because the changes only affect taxing entities.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

This amendment is not expected to impact non-small businesses because the changes only affect taxing entities.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

This amendment is not expected to impact persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local governments because the changes only affect taxing entities.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

This amendment is not expected to impose additional compliance costs on affected persons because any changes to the appraisal personnel and other designation programs with a fiscal impact would have been considered in the authorizing legislation.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

A Commissioner of the Tax Commission, Rebecca L. Rockwell, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|
| Section 59-2-701 Section 59-2-702 Section 59-702.5   |  |  |  |
| Section 59-2-1001  |  |  |  |

#### **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025                                       |  |  |  |

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

# **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Rebecca Rockwell, Commissioner | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |             |                  |  |  |
|------------------------------|-------------|------------------|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment    |             |                  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R884-24P-33 | Filing ID: 57486 |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |                    |                              |  |  |  |
|--|--------------------|------------------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Tax Commission, I  | Tax Commission, Property Tax |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Tax Commission     |                              |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 210 N 1950 W       |                              |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT |                              |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                    |                              |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:             | Email:                       |  |  |  |
| Chantay Asper 801-297-3901 casper@utah.gov   |                    |                              |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                    |                              |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R884-24P-33. 2026 Personal Property Valuation Guides and Schedules Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 59-2-107

## 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

This rule must be amended annually to reflect updated valuation and depreciation data for the 2026 calendar year.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This proposed rule amendment modifies the percent good tables for the 2026 calendar year.

# **Fiscal Information**

# 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

The amount of savings or cost to state government is not affected by this rule. Tax revenue generated by taxing personal property is distributed to local governments to finance public services, programs, school districts and local districts. No tax revenues generated by taxation of personal property will be retained by state government.

#### B. Local governments:

The amount of saving or cost to local governments is undetermined.

Local governmental entities receive tax revenue based on increased or decreased personal property values and the change in the annual property tax rate. Increases or decreases in 2026 property tax revenue cannot be determined, even if there were no changes in the percent good tables, because taxpayer acquisitions and deletions of personal property during 2026 are unknown.

The proposed personal property schedules in this amendment are raised, lowered, or remain the same for 2026 based upon the type and age of the personal property assessed.

Schedules used to value business personal property increase or decrease based upon the calculation of economic trends from cost indexes published by the Marshall Valuation Service.

It is anticipated that the change in the annual property tax rate will have a larger impact on revenue than will the proposed amendments to this rule.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

In the aggregate, the amount of savings or cost to small businesses is undetermined.

Affected businesses pay property taxes based on increased or decreased personal property values and the change in the annual property tax rate.

The proposed personal property schedules in this rule are raised, lowered, or remain the same for 2026 based upon the type and age of the property.

Since some schedules are increased and some decreased, it is not possible to determine the change to affected persons without knowing the 2026 personal property mix compared to the previous year.

#### D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

In the aggregate, the amount of savings or cost to non-small businesses is undetermined.

Affected non-small businesses pay property taxes based on increased or decreased personal property values and the change in the annual property tax rate.

The proposed personal property schedules in this rule are raised, lowered, or remain the same for 2026 based upon the type and age of the property.

Since some schedules are increased and some decreased, it is not possible to determine the change to affected persons without knowing the 2026 personal property mix compared to the previous year.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

In the aggregate, the amount of savings or cost to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, and state or local government entities is undetermined.

Affected persons pay property taxes based on increased or decreased personal property values and the change in the annual property tax rate.

The proposed personal property schedules in this rule are raised, lowered, or remain the same for 2026 based upon the type and age of the property.

Since some schedules are increased and some decreased, it is not possible to determine the change to affected persons without knowing the 2026 personal property mix compared to the previous year.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

Local business owners and property tax practitioners will be required to be aware of new percent good figures.

This is an annual occurrence; therefore, the ongoing compliance cost to complete this assessment process will not change.

The change in taxes charged for these persons depends entirely on the owner's mix of personal property since some percent good schedules are increasing and others decreasing.

For example, the owner of a business may discard some personal property items and add new equipment or replace equipment which may increase or decrease personal property values.

In addition, the personal property percent good schedule percentages often change from the previous year due to current economic conditions.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

Commissioner of the Tax Commission Rebecca L. Rockwell has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### Citation Information

| 7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement: |  |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Section 59-2-107   |  |  |  |  |  |

# **Public Notice Information**

| 9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1. |            |  |
|--|------------|--|
| A. Comments will be accepted until:  | 10/31/2025 |  |

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on:                    | 11/07/2025   |
|--|--|
| NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making t | he rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date |

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Rebecca Rockwell, Commissioner | Date: | 09/11/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE                         |  |  |  |  |  |  |
|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Amendment                            |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| Rule or section number: R884-24P-53 Filing ID: 57485 |  |  |  |  |  |  |

# **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |                    |                              |  |  |  |
|--|--------------------|------------------------------|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Tax Commission, F  | Tax Commission, Property Tax |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Tax Commission     | Tax Commission               |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 210 N 1950 W       |                              |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT |                              |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                    |                              |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:             | Email:                       |  |  |  |
| Chantay Asper 801-297-3901 casper@utah.gov   |                    |                              |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                    |                              |  |  |  |

#### General Information

#### 2. Rule or section catchline:

R884-24P-53. 2026 Guides for Valuation of Land Subject to the Farmland Assessment Act Pursuant to Utah Code Ann. Section 59-2-515

#### 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

Section 59-2-515 authorizes the State Tax Commission to make rules necessary to effectuate the Farmland Assessment Act.

Section 59-2-514 creates the State Farmland Advisory Committee and requires a person appointed by the Commission to serve as chair.

This committee reviews several classifications of land in agricultural use in the various areas of the state and recommends a range of values for each of the classifications based upon productive capabilities of the land when devoted to agricultural use.

The recommendations are then submitted to the commission for approval and publication in rule. This proposed rule represents the committee's recommendations.

#### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

Provides 2026 updates for a range of values for classifications of agricultural land throughout the state based upon productive capabilities of the land when devoted to agricultural use.

## **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

The aggregate anticipated cost or savings to the state budget is undetermined.

However, based on available information, the overall aggregate anticipated cost or savings to the state budget is expected to be minimal as a result of this amendment.

The Education Fund receives revenue based on increased or decreased real and personal property valuation, including property assessed under the FAA.

Property valuation changes have been recommended by class and by county.

No total cost or savings can be calculated without an exhaustive study of farmland acreage in each county by class and a listing of property newly qualifying or no longer qualifying for FAA assessment in the coming year.

#### B. Local governments:

The aggregate anticipated cost or savings to local governments is undetermined.

However, based on available information, the overall aggregate anticipated cost or savings to local governments is expected to be minimal.

Local governmental entities receive tax revenue based on increased or decreased property valuation, including property assessed under FAA.

Property valuation changes have been recommended by class and by county.

No total cost or savings can be calculated without an exhaustive study of farmland acreage in each county by class and a listing of property newly qualifying or no longer qualifying for FAA assessment in the coming year.

Additionally, county assessors' offices statewide will be required to input the new value indicators into their systems to be applied against the acreage for individual properties.

This input process is easily accomplished on an annual basis and represents no significant cost in time or money to the assessors' offices.

# C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

The aggregate anticipated costs or savings to small businesses is undetermined.

However, based on available information, the aggregate costs or savings to small businesses as a cohort is expected to be minimal.

Each individual small business with property eligible for assessment under the FAA may see a change in value which may result in costs or savings. The extent of these costs or savings are subject to the specific small businesses' unique mix of property class and situs county.

No total cost or savings can be calculated without an exhaustive study of farmland acreage in each county by class and a listing of property newly qualifying or no longer qualifying for FAA assessment in the coming year.

Additionally, any cost or savings estimate will be further altered by changes to local property tax rates.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

The aggregate anticipated costs or savings to non-small businesses is undetermined.

However, based on available information, the aggregate costs or savings to non-small businesses as a cohort is expected to be minimal.

Each individual non-small business with property eligible for assessment under the FAA may see a change in value which may result in costs or savings. The extent of costs or savings are subject to the specific non-small businesses' unique mix of property class and situs county.

No total cost or savings can be calculated without an exhaustive study of farmland acreage in each county by class and a listing of property newly qualifying or no longer qualifying for FAA assessment in the coming year.

Additionally, any cost or savings estimate will be further altered by changes to local property tax rates.

# **E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

The aggregate anticipated costs or savings to persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities (persons) is undetermined.

However, based on available information, the aggregate costs or savings to persons as a cohort is expected to be minimal.

#### NOTICES OF PROPOSED RULES

Each person with property eligible for assessment under the FAA may see a change in value which may result in costs or savings. The extent of costs or savings are subject to the specific person's unique mix of property class and situs county.

No total cost or savings can be calculated without an exhaustive study of farmland acreage in each county by class and a listing of property newly qualifying or no longer qualifying for FAA assessment in the coming year.

Additionally, any cost or savings estimate will be further altered by changes to local property tax rates.

# F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

County assessors' offices statewide will be required to input the new value indicators into their systems to be applied against the acreage for individual properties.

This input process is easily accomplished on an annual basis and represents no significant compliance cost in time or money to the assessors' offices.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |

# H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

A Commissioner of the Tax Commission, Rebecca L. Rockwell, has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Section 59-2-515

#### **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until: 10/31/2025

10. This rule change MAY become effective on: 11/07/2025

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

#### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Rebecca Rockwell, Commissioner | Date: | 09/11/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                                |       |            |

| NOTICE OF SUBSTANTIVE CHANGE |        |                  |  |  |  |  |
|------------------------------|--------|------------------|--|--|--|--|
| TYPE OF FILING: Repeal       |        |                  |  |  |  |  |
| Rule or section number:      | R940-4 | Filing ID: 57484 |  |  |  |  |

# Agency Information

| Agency Information   |                   |   |  |  |  |
|--|-------------------|---|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Transportation C  | Transportation Commission, Administration |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Calvin Rampton    | Calvin Rampton                            |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4501 S 2700 W     | 4501 S 2700 W                             |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT  | Taylorsville, UT                          |  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 148455     | PO Box 148455                             |  |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-8455             |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                   |   |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:            | Email:                                    |  |  |  |
| Leif Elder   | 801-580-8296      | lelder@utah.gov                           |  |  |  |
| Marlene Galindo  | 801-965-4026      | mgalindo1@utah.gov                        |  |  |  |
| James Godin  | 801-573-7181      | jamesjgodin@agutah.gov                    |  |  |  |
| Lori Edwards   | 385-341-3414      | loriedwards@agutah.gov                    |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |   |  |  |  |

#### **General Information**

# 2. Rule or section catchline:

R940-4. Airports of Regional Significance

3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action? Changes are because of legislative action.

If yes, any bill number and session: SB 135 (2024 General Session)

# 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:

The Statutory Requirement for the Commission to make Rule R940-4 was repealed by SB 135, passed in the 2024 General Session, and due to this legislative development, the Commission wants to repeal Rule R940-4.

# 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

This change repeals the rule in its entirety.

# **Fiscal Information**

#### 6. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

# A. State budget:

There is no fiscal impact to the state budget because this rule merely created a definition of "airports of regional significance," the creation of which had no fiscal implications.

# B. Local governments:

There is no fiscal impact to local governments because this rule merely created a definition of "airports of regional significance," the creation of which had no fiscal implications.

#### C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

There is no fiscal impact to small businesses because this rule merely created a definition of "airports of regional significance," the creation of which had no fiscal implications.

# D. Non-small businesses ("non-small business" means a business employing 50 or more persons):

There is no fiscal impact to non-small businesses because this rule merely created a definition of "airports of regional significance," the creation of which had no fiscal implications.

**E. Persons other than small businesses, non-small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an *agency*):

There is no fiscal impact to persons because this rule merely created a definition of "airports of regional significance," the creation of which had no fiscal implications.

#### F. Compliance costs for affected persons:

It will not cost a person anything to comply with this change because this is a repeal.

**G. Regulatory Impact Summary Table** (This table includes only fiscal impacts the agency was able to measure. If the agency could not estimate an impact, it is excluded from this table but described in boxes A through F.)

| Regulatory Impact Summary Table |        |        |        |        |        |  |  |  |
|---------------------------------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--------|--|--|--|
| Fiscal Cost                     | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |  |  |  |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Total Fiscal Cost               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Fiscal Benefits                 | FY2026 | FY2027 | FY2028 | FY2029 | FY2030 |  |  |  |
| State Budget                    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Local Governments               | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Small Businesses                | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Non-Small Businesses            | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Other Persons                   | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Total Fiscal Benefits           | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |
| Net Fiscal Benefits             | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    | \$0    |  |  |  |

#### H. Department head comments on fiscal impact and approval of regulatory impact analysis:

The Executive Director of the Department of Transportation, Carlos Braceras, P.E., has reviewed and approved this regulatory impact analysis.

#### **Citation Information**

7. Provide citations to the statutory authority for the rule. If there is also a federal requirement for the rule, provide a citation to that requirement:

Section 72-1-301

# **Public Notice Information**

9. The public may submit written or oral comments to the agency identified in box 1.

A. Comments will be accepted until:

10/31/2025

| 10. This rule change MAY become effective on: | 1/07/2025 |
|---|-----------|
|---|-----------|

NOTE: The date above is the date the agency anticipates making the rule or its changes effective. It is NOT the effective date.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Carlos M. Braceras, PE, Executive | Date: | 09/10/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | Director                          |       |            |

**End of the Notices of Proposed Rules Section** 

# NOTICES OF 120-DAY (EMERGENCY) RULES

An agency may file a 120-DAY (EMERGENCY) RULE when it finds that regular rulemaking procedures would:

- (a) cause an imminent peril to the public health, safety, or welfare;
- (b) cause an imminent budget reduction because of budget restraints or federal requirements; or
- (c) place the agency in violation of federal or state law (Subsection 63G-3-304(1)).

As with a **Proposed Rule**, a **120-Day Rule** is preceded by a **Rule Analysis**. This analysis provides summary information about the **120-Day Rule** including the name of a contact person, justification for filing a **120-Day Rule**, anticipated cost impact of the rule, and legal cross-references.

A **120-DAY RULE** is effective when filed with the Office of Administrative Rules, or on a later date designated by the agency. A **120-DAY RULE** is effective for 120 days or until it is superseded by a permanent rule. Because of its temporary nature, a **120-DAY RULE** is not codified as part of the *Utah Administrative Code*.

The law does not require a public comment period for **120-DAY RULEs**. However, when an agency files a **120-DAY RULE**, it may file a **PROPOSED RULE** at the same time, to make the requirements permanent.

Emergency or 120-Day Rules are governed by Section 63G-3-304, and Section R15-4-8.

| NOTICE OF EMERGENCY (120-DAY) RULE               |            |                  |  |
|--|------------|------------------|--|
| Rule or section Number: R357-13 Filing ID: 57463 |            | Filing ID: 57463 |  |
| Effective date:                                  | 09/05/2025 |                  |  |

### **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Governor, Econo   | Governor, Economic Opportunity |  |  |
|--|-------------------|--------------------------------|--|--|
| Building:  | World Trade Cer   | World Trade Center             |  |  |
| Street address:  | 60 E South Temp   | 60 E South Temple, Suite 300   |  |  |
| City, state  | Salt Lake City, U | Salt Lake City, UT             |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                   |                                |  |  |
| Name:  | Name: Email:      |                                |  |  |
| Greg Jeffs   | 801-368-1957      | 801-368-1957 gjeffs@utah.gov   |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                   |                                |  |  |

### General Information

| General information   |  |  |
|---|--|--|
| 2. Rule or section catchline:   |  |  |
| R357-13. Hotel Convention Center Incentive  |  |  |
| 3. Are any changes in this filing because of state legislative action?  | Changes are because of legislative action.           |  |
| If yes, any bill number and session: SB 26 (2025 General Session)   |  |  |
| 4. Purpose of the new rule or reason for the change:  |  |  |
| SB 26 (passed in the 2025 General Session) amends Section 63N-2-512 amendments. SB 26 (2025) adds the following to Section 63N-2-512: | 2. These changes will align this rule with those     |  |
| 1) "City-wide event" means an event hosted at a convention facility pursuant t  | to a contract by a nonprofit corporation responsible |  |

for the promotion of convention business.

- 2) "Qualified losses" means revenue lost by an affected hotel for city-wide events attributable to the qualified hotel room supply being added to the market in the state.
- 3) In accordance with office rules and Subsection (6), the Governor's Office of Economic Opportunity (GOEO) shall annually pay \$2,100,000 from the mitigation fund to affected hotels to mitigate qualified losses.
- 4) Each calendar year, GOEO shall award the available \$2,100,000 to affected hotels proportionally, according to each affected hotel's qualified losses in relation to the total qualified losses suffered collectively by all affected hotels.

This is a second emergency filing for this rule. During the first emergency rule's time period, a Notice of Substantive Change amendment should have been filed to make this rule permanent. This did not happen and is now being corrected.

A Notice of Substantive Change amendment is published in this issue, October 1, 2025, of the *Utah State Bulletin* and has an earliest effective date of 11/07/2025. This emergency rule is to bridge the time between now and that effective date.

### 5. Summary of the new rule or change:

The changes integrate SB 26's amendments for "city-wide event" and "qualified losses" into this rule. It also adopts calendar year dates. These changes affect how staff of the GOEO perform their duties.

There are also nonsubstantive changes to correct numbering, grammar, and punctuation.

(EDITOR'S NOTE: A corresponding proposed amendment for Rule R357-13 is under ID 57464 in this issue, October 1, 2025, of the Bulletin.)

### 6A. The agency finds that regular rulemaking would:

- □ cause an imminent peril to the public health, safety, or welfare;
- ause an imminent budget reduction because of budget restraints or federal requirements; or
- □ place the agency in violation of federal or state law.

### B. Specific reasons and justifications for this finding:

SB 26 (2025) has been signed by the Governor and took effect 05/07/2025.

This rule must become effective in order to be in compliance with the law.

### **Fiscal Information**

### 7. Provide an estimate and written explanation of the aggregate anticipated cost or savings to:

### A. State budget:

No anticipated costs or savings. This rule will not affect state budget as it is implementing Section 63N-2-512 and does not create or reduce any costs associated with Section 63N-2-512. This is because clarifying definitions and specifying time tables do not create costs.

### **B. Local governments:**

No anticipated costs or savings. This rule change will not increase or decrease costs to local governments because it does not require anything of local governments.

C. Small businesses ("small business" means a business employing 1-49 persons):

No anticipated costs or savings. This rule change will not increase or decrease costs to small businesses because it does not require anything of small businesses.

**D. Persons other than small businesses, state, or local government entities** ("person" means any individual, partnership, corporation, association, governmental entity, or public or private organization of any character other than an **agency**):

No anticipated costs or savings. This rule change will not increase or decrease costs to other persons because it does not require anything of them.

### E. Compliance costs for affected persons:

No anticipated costs or savings. The affected persons are primarily the staff of the GOEO, as these changes affect how they perform their duties.

The cost does not change because the change does not increase the amount of duties, it only changes current duties.

**F. Comments by the department head on the fiscal impact this rule may have on businesses** (Include the name and title of the department head):

There are no anticipated fiscal impacts. Jefferson Moss, Executive Director

### **Citation Information**

| 8. Provide citations to the statutory auditation to that requirement: | thority for the rule. If there is also a fed | eral requirement for the rule, provide a |
|---|--|--|
| Section 63N-2-512   |  |  |

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Greg Jeffs, Designee | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|----------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                      |       |            |

End of the Notices of 120-Day (Emergency) Rules Section

# FIVE-YEAR NOTICES OF REVIEW AND STATEMENTS OF CONTINUATION

Within five years of an administrative rule's original enactment or last five-year review, the agency is required to review the rule. This review is intended to help the agency determine, and to notify the public, that the administrative rule in force is still authorized by statute and necessary. Upon reviewing a rule, an agency may: repeal the rule by filing a **Proposed Rule**; continue the rule as it is by filing a **FIVE-YEAR NOTICE OF REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION (REVIEW)**; or amend the rule by filing a **PROPOSED RULE** and by filing a **REVIEW**. By filing a **REVIEW**, the agency indicates that the rule is still necessary.

A **Review** is not followed by the rule text. The rule text that is being continued may be found in the online edition of the *Utah Administrative Code* available at adminrules.utah.gov. The rule text may also be inspected at the agency or the Office of Administrative Rules. **Reviews** are effective upon filing.

**REVIEWS** are governed by Section 63G-3-305.

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |                        |  |
|--|------------------------|--|
| Rule number:   | R15-2 Filing ID: 53736 |  |
| Effective date:  | 09/05/2025             |  |

### **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Operations, Administrative Rules (Office of) |               |  |  |
|--|---|---------------|--|--|
| Building:  | Taylorsville State Office Building                      |               |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W   | 4315 S 2700 W |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT  |               |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 141007   |               |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1007                           |               |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |   |               |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone: Email:   |               |  |  |
| Michael Broschinsky  | 801-602-8937 mbroschi@utah.gov                          |               |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |               |  |  |

### **General Information**

# 2. Rule catchline: R15-2. Public Petitioning for Rulemaking 3. Statutory provisions that authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions: Subsection 63G-3-601(3) This subsection requires the Office of Administrative Rules (office) to "prescribe by rule" the form for petitions and how the petitions are to be submitted, and considered, as well as the procedures for the petitions' disposition. 4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule: The office has received no comments regarding this rule since the last five-year review.

# 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

Subsection 63G-3-601(3) continues to require this rule.

In addition, public participation in the administrative rulemaking process is helped by having a consistent requirement for the submission, consideration, and disposition of public petitions for rulemaking. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

During the review of this rule, office staff identified amendments that need to be made to make this rule clearer. These proposed amendments will be published in a later issue of the Utah State Bulletin.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Michael Broschinsky, Director | Date: | 09/04/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                               |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |                        |  |
|--|------------------------|--|
| Rule number:   | R15-3 Filing ID: 53737 |  |
| Effective date:  | 09/05/2025             |  |

### **Agency Information**

| Agoney information   |                    |   |  |  |
|--|--------------------|---|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Ope     | Government Operations, Administrative Rules (Office of) |  |  |
| Building:  | Taylorsville State | Taylorsville State Office Building                      |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W      |   |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT   | Taylorsville, UT  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 141007      | PO Box 141007   |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U  | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1007                           |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                    |   |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:             | Phone: Email:   |  |  |
| Michel Broschinsky   | 801-602-8937       | 801-602-8937 mbroschi@utah.gov                          |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                    |   |  |  |

### General Information

|                              | General Information   |
|------------------------------|---|
| 2. Rule catchline:           |   |
| R15-3. Administrative Rules  | : Scope, Content, and When Required   |
| 3. Statutory provisions that | t authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions:   |
| Subsection 63G-3-402(2)      | Subsection 63G-3-402(2) directs the Office of Administrative Rules (office) to establish filing, publication, and hearing procedures. |
|                              | Rule R15-3 clarifies when rulemaking is required, and requirements for incorporation by reference within rules.                       |

4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule:

No written comments regarding Rule R15-3 have been received since its last five-year review.

5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

Guidance regarding when rulemaking is necessary and how to address incorporation by reference within rule text is still necessary.

In addition, the legislative direction at Subsection 63G-3-402(2) continues in force. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

During the review of this rule, office staff identified amendments that need to be made to make this rule clearer. These proposed amendments will be published in a later issue of the Utah State Bulletin.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Michael Broschinsky, Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                               |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |                        |  |
|--|------------------------|--|
| Rule number:   | R15-4 Filing ID: 53738 |  |
| Effective date:  | 09/05/2025             |  |

### **Agency Information**

| rigonoy innormation  |   |                                    |  |  |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Operations, Administrative Rules (Office of) |                                    |  |  |
| Building:  | Taylorsville State                                      | Taylorsville State Office Building |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W   |                                    |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT  |                                    |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 141007   | PO Box 141007                      |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1007                           |                                    |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |   |                                    |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:  | Email:                             |  |  |
| Michael Broschinsky  | 801-602-8937  | mbroschi@utah.gov                  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |                                    |  |  |

### **General Information**

### 2. Rule catchline:

R15-4. Administrative Rulemaking Procedures

### 3. Statutory provisions that authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions:

Subsection 63G-3-402(2)

Subsection 63G-3-402(2) directs the Office of Administrative Rules (office) to establish filing, publication, and hearing procedures.

Rule R15-4 establishes procedures for filing and publication of agency rules under Sections 63G-3-301, 63G-3-303, and 63G-3-304.

# 4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule:

No comments have been received regarding Rule R15-4 since its last five-year review.

# 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

Rule R15-4 provides rulemaking agencies with consistent procedures to follow in filing and publishing rules. These consistent procedures facilitate agency work and public access to rulemaking information. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

During the review of this rule, office staff identified amendments that need to be made to make this rule clearer. These proposed amendments will be published in a later issue of the Utah State Bulletin.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Michael Broschinsky, Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | ·                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |                        |  |
|--|------------------------|--|
| Rule number:   | R15-5 Filing ID: 53739 |  |
| Effective date:  | 09/05/2025             |  |

### **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |   |                                    |  |  |
|--|---|------------------------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Government Operations, Administrative Rules (Office of) |                                    |  |  |
| Building:  | Taylorsville State                                      | Taylorsville State Office Building |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W   |                                    |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT  |                                    |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 141007   | PO Box 141007                      |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-1007                           |                                    |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |   |                                    |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:  | Email:                             |  |  |
| Michael Broschinsky  | 801-602-8937  | mbroschi@utah.gov                  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |   |                                    |  |  |

### **General Information**

### 2. Rule catchline:

R15-5. Administrative Rules Adjudicative Proceedings

### 3. Statutory provisions that authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions:

| \ ,                     | Subsection 63G-3-401(1) directs the Office of Administrative Rules (office) to administer the Utah Administrative Rulemaking Act (Act) and requires agencies to comply with filing, publication, and hearing procedures. |
|-------------------------|--|
| Subsection 63G-3-401(2) | Subsection 63G-3-401(2) directs the office to establish, by rule, filing, publication, and hearing procedures.   |

# 4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule:

No written comments have been received regarding Rule R15-5 since its last five-year review.

# 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

In administering the Act and requiring compliance with filing and publication procedures, the office may need to refuse to publish an administrative rule filing. This would happen in the event that an agency submits a filing that does not meet the requirements given in the Act, the filing and publication requirements given in rule by the office, or both.

Rule R15-5 gives the mechanism by which the office may refuse to publish an administrative rule filing and how an agency may appeal that refusal. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

During the review of this rule, office staff identified amendments that need to be made to make this rule clearer. These proposed amendments will be published in a later issue of the Utah State Bulletin.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Michael Broschinsky, Director | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-------------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | ·                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |                        |  |
|--|------------------------|--|
| Rule number:   | R68-8 Filing ID: 55675 |  |
| Effective date:  | 09/05/2025             |  |

### **Agency Information**

|  | Agono                                | y information                        |  |  |
|--|--------------------------------------|--------------------------------------|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Agriculture and Food, Plant Industry |                                      |  |  |
| Building:  | Taylorsville State                   | Office Building, South Bldg, Floor 2 |  |  |
| Street address:  | 4315 S 2700 W                        |                                      |  |  |
| City, state:   | Taylorsville, UT                     |                                      |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 146500                        |                                      |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, U                    | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6500        |  |  |
| Contact persons:   | Contact persons:                     |                                      |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                               | Email:                               |  |  |
| Amber Brown  | 385-245-5222                         | ambermbrown@utah.gov                 |  |  |
| Camille Knudson  | 801-597-6010                         | camillek@utah.gov                    |  |  |
| Robert Hougaard  | 801-982-2305                         | rhougaard@utah.gov                   |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                      |                                      |  |  |

| 2. Rule catchline:                                   |  |
|--|--|
| R68-8. Utah Seed Rule                                |  |
| 3. Statutory provisions that                         | authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions:  |
| Section 4-2-103                                      | This section is the functions, powers, and duties of the Department of Agriculture and Food (department).  |
|  | Subsection 4-2-103(1)(i) authorizes the department to make rules for the effective administration of agricultural laws in the state.   |
| Sections 4-16-103 and 4-17-103                       | Authorize the department to make and enforce rules and requires the Commissioner, or designee, to investigate, designate, and regulate noxious weeds statewide.  |
|  | The department can also assist and coordinate with counties to ensure compliance with weed control programs, and it has the power to regulate contaminated articles to prevent the spread of noxious weeds or seeds. |
| Subsection 4-16-202(1)(c)                            | Authorizes the department to make a rule that requires seeds to be free of noxious weed seeds, allowing the department to set a specific tolerance for contamination through the official rulemaking process.        |
| 4. A summary of written copersons supporting or oppo | mments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested sing this rule:  |
| The department has not receive                       | ved any comments regarding the continuation of this rule.  |

### 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

Rule R68-8 is a critical tool for fulfilling the department's core statutory responsibilities.

Title 4, Chapter 16, Utah Seed Act, grants the department the authority to make and enforce rules to protect the integrity of the state's agricultural industry.

This rule ensures consumer protection by guaranteeing that seeds are truthfully labeled for purity and germination, and it prevents economic loss for farmers and producers who rely on a clean, quality product.

Furthermore, this rule directly addresses the department's role in safeguarding public health and the environment by controlling the spread of noxious weeds.

By establishing maximum tolerance levels and requiring seeds to be free of these destructive species, this rule is a proactive measure that mitigates a significant threat to Utah's rangelands, watersheds, and crops.

Without this administrative rule, the department's ability to enforce these key mandates would be severely diminished, compromising the long-term health and viability of Utah agriculture. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Kelly Pehrson, Commissioner | Date: | 09/05/2025 |
|---------------------|-----------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                             |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |            |                  |  |
|--|------------|------------------|--|
| Rule number:   | R156-9     | Filing ID: 57115 |  |
| Effective date:  | 09/03/2025 |                  |  |

### **Agency Information**

| 1. Title catchline:  | Commerce, Prof   | Commerce, Professional Licensing |  |
|--|------------------|----------------------------------|--|
| Street address:  | 160 E 300 S      | 160 E 300 S                      |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City U | Salt Lake City UT 84111-2316     |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 146741    | PO Box 146741                    |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City U | Salt Lake City UT 84114-6741     |  |
| Contact persons:   |                  |                                  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:           | Email:                           |  |
| Tracy Taylor   | 801-530-6621     | 801-530-6621 trtaylor@utah.gov   |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                  |                                  |  |

| 2. Rule catchline:   |   |  |
|--|---|--|
| R156-9. Funeral Service Licensing Act Rule   |   |  |
| 3. Statutory provisions that authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions: |   |  |
| Title 58, Chapter 9  | Provides for the licensure and regulation of funeral service director, funeral service intern, funeral service establishment, and preneed funeral arrangement sales agent.                          |  |
| Subsection 58-1-106(1)(a)  | Provides that the Division of Professional Licensing (division) may adopt and enforce rules to administer Title 58.   |  |
| Subsections 58-1-202(1)(a)   | Provides that the Funeral Service Licensing Board's duties, functions, and responsibilities include recommending to the director appropriate rules. This rule was enacted to clarify the provisions |  |

of Title 58, Chapter 9, with respect to funeral service director, funeral service intern, funeral service establishment, and preneed funeral arrangement sales agent.

### 4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule:

No comments have been received since the last five-year review of this rule.

### 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

This rule is necessary as it provides a mechanism to inform potential licensees of the requirements for licensure as allowed under statutory authority provided in Title 58, Chapter 9.

This rule is also necessary as it provides information to ensure applicants for licensure are adequately trained and meet minimum licensure requirements, and provides licensees with information concerning unprofessional conduct, definitions, and ethical standards relating to the profession. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Mark Steinagel, Director | Date: | 08/22/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                          |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |            |                  |
|--|------------|------------------|
| Rule number:   | R156-61a   | Filing ID: 50293 |
| Effective date:  | 09/03/2025 |                  |

### **Agency Information**

| rigency information  |                                    |                               |  |
|--|------------------------------------|-------------------------------|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Commerce, Professional Licensing   |                               |  |
| Building:  | Heber M Wells Building             |                               |  |
| Street address:  | 160 E 300 S                        |                               |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT                 | Salt Lake City, UT 84111-2316 |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box146741                       |                               |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-6741      |                               |  |
| Contact persons:   |                                    |                               |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                             | Email:                        |  |
| Jana Johansen  | 801-530-6651 janajohansen@utah.gov |                               |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                                    |                               |  |

| 2. Rule catchline: R156-61a. Behavior Analyst Licensing Act Rule |   |  |
|--|---|--|
|  |   |  |
| Title 58, Chapter 61, Part 7                                     | Provides for the licensure and regulation of behavior analysts and assistant behavior specialists.  |  |
| Subsection 58-1-106(1)(a)  | Provides that the Division of Professional Licensing (division) may adopt and enforce rules to administer Title 58.                             |  |
| Subsection 58-1-202(1)(a)  | Provides that the Psychologist Licensing Board's duties, functions and responsibilities include recommending to the director appropriate rules. |  |

### FIVE-YEAR NOTICES OF REVIEW AND STATEMENTS OF CONTINUATION

This rule was enacted to clarify the provisions of Title 58, Chapter 61, Part 7 with respect to behavior analysts and assistant behavior specialists.

# 4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule:

No comments have been received since the last five-year review of this rule.

# 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

This rule is necessary as it provides a mechanism to inform potential licensees of the requirements for licensure as allowed under statutory authority provided in Title 58, Chapter 61, Part 7.

This rule is also necessary as it provides information to ensure applicants for licensure are adequately trained and meets minimum licensure requirements, and provides licensees with information concerning unprofessional conduct, definitions, and ethical standards relating to the profession. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Mark Steinagel, Director | Date: | 08/22/2025 |
|---------------------|--------------------------|-------|------------|
| designee and title: |                          |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |            |                  |
|--|------------|------------------|
| Rule number:   | R277-701   | Filing ID: 56950 |
| Effective date:  | 09/15/2025 |                  |

### **Agency Information**

| - Igencyon   |  |        |  |
|--|--|--------|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Administration                  |        |  |
| Building:  | Board of Education                         |        |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S                                |        |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84111                   |        |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200                              |        |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200              |        |  |
| Contact persons:   |  |        |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                                     | Email: |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550 elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |        |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |  |        |  |

| 2. Rule catchline:                      |  |  |
|---|--|--|
| R277-701. Early College Programs        |  |  |
| 3. Statutory provisions that            | authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions:                                  |  |
| Utah Constitution, Article X, Section 3 | Vests general control and supervision over public education in the Board.  |  |
| Subsection 53E-3-401(4)                 | Allows the Board to adopt rules in accordance with its responsibilities.   |  |
| Section 53F-2-408.5                     | Requires the Board to establish a distribution formula for the expenditure of funds appropriated for Early College Programs. |  |
| Section 53F-2-409                       | Directs the Board to provide for the distribution of concurrent enrollment dollars in rule.                                  |  |

## 4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule:

There were no public comments received.

# 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

This rule is necessary to provide resources to Local Education Agencies (LEAs) for early college programs, and to specify the standards and procedures for concurrent enrollment courses and the criteria for funding appropriate concurrent enrollment expenditures. Therefore, this rule should be continued.

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | Policy                                 |       |            |

| NOTICE OF FIVE-YEAR REVIEW AND STATEMENT OF CONTINUATION |            |                  |  |  |
|--|------------|------------------|--|--|
| Rule number:   | R277-723   | Filing ID: 52969 |  |  |
| Effective date:  | 09/15/2025 |                  |  |  |

### **Agency Information**

| Agency information   |                               |                               |  |  |  |  |
|--|-------------------------------|-------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| 1. Title catchline:  | Education, Administration     |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Building:  | Board of Education            |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Street address:  | 250 E 500 S                   |                               |  |  |  |  |
| City, state:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84111      |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Mailing address:   | PO Box 144200                 |                               |  |  |  |  |
| City, state and zip:   | Salt Lake City, UT 84114-4200 |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Contact persons:   |                               |                               |  |  |  |  |
| Name:  | Phone:                        | Email:                        |  |  |  |  |
| Elisse Newey   | 801-538-7550                  | elisse.newey@schools.utah.gov |  |  |  |  |
| Please address questions regarding information on this notice to the persons listed above. |                               |                               |  |  |  |  |

### General Information

# 2. Rule catchline: R277-723. Start Smart Utah Program 3. Statutory provisions that authorize or require this rule and an explanation of those particular statutory provisions: Utah Constitution, Article X, Section 3 Subsection 53E-3-401(4) Allows the Board to adopt rules in accordance with its responsibilities. Subsection 53G-9-205.1(3) Directs the Board to create a waiver application, submission, review, and approval process.

# 4. A summary of written comments received during and since the last five-year review of this rule from interested persons supporting or opposing this rule:

There were no public comments received.

# 5. A reasoned justification for continuation of this rule, including reasons why the agency disagrees with comments in opposition to this rule, if any:

This rule is necessary to provide a process to apply for and receive a waiver from the requirements of Subsection 53G-9-205.1(2). Therefore, this rule should be continued.

### FIVE-YEAR NOTICES OF REVIEW AND STATEMENTS OF CONTINUATION

### **Agency Authorization Information**

| Agency head or      | Elisse Newey, Deputy Superintendent of | Date: | 09/15/2025 |
|---------------------|--|-------|------------|
| designee and title: | Policy                                 |       |            |

End of the Five-Year Notices of Review and Statements of Continuation Section

# NOTICES OF RULE EFFECTIVE DATES

State law provides for agencies to make their administrative rules effective and enforceable after publication in the *Utah State Bulletin*. In the case of **Proposed Rules** or **Changes in Proposed Rules** with a designated comment period, the law permits an agency to make a rule effective no fewer than seven calendar days after the close of the public comment period, nor more than 120 days after the publication date. In the case of **Changes in Proposed Rules** with no designated comment period, the law permits an agency to make a rule effective on any date including or after the thirtieth day after the rule's publication date, but not more than 120 days after the publication date. If an agency fails to file a **Notice of Effective Date** within 120 days from the publication of a **Proposed Rule** or a related **Change in Proposed Rule** the rule lapses.

Agencies have notified the Office of Administrative Rules that the rules listed below have been made effective.

**Notices of Effective Date** are governed by Subsection 63G-3-301(12), Section 63G-3-303, and Sections R15-4-5a and R15-4-5b.

### Agriculture and Food

Specialized Products

No. 57355 (Amendment) R66-33: Industrial Hemp Producer Registration

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

No. 57356 (Amendment) R66-34: Industrial Hemp Retailer Permit

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

No. 57357 (Amendment) R66-36: Transport of Transportable Industrial Hemp Concentrate

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

No. 57369 (New Rule) R66-50: Kratom Retail Permit

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

No. 57370 (New Rule) R66-51: Kratom Product Registration and Labeling

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

No. 57371 (New Rule) R66-52: Kratom Product Testing

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

Regulatory Services

No. 57367 (Repeal and Reenact) R70-410: Grading and Inspection of Small Shell Egg Producers

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

### Commerce

Professional Licensing

No. 57366 (Amendment) R156-20b: Environmental Health Scientist Act Rule

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/23/2025

### NOTICES OF RULE EFFECTIVE DATES

**Environmental Quality** 

Waste Management and Radiation Control, Radiation No. 57278 (Amendment) R313-28: Definitions

Published: 07/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

Waste Management and Radiation Control, Waste Management

No. 57329 (Amendment) R315-306-1: Applicability

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57330 (Amendment) R315-307-1: Applicability

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57331 (Amendment) R315-310-12: Contents of a Permit Application for a New or Expanding Coal Combustion Residual

Landfill and Coal Combustion Residual Surface Impoundment

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57332 (Amendment) R315-311-2: Permit Modification, Renewal, or Termination

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57333 (Amendment) R315-314-1: Applicability

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57334 (Amendment) R315-319: Coal Combustion Residuals Requirements

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

Water Quality

No. 57091 (Amendment) R317-2: Standards of Quality for Waters of the State

Published: 04/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

No. 57091 (Change in Proposed Rule) R317-2: Standards of Quality for Waters of the State

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

**Government Operations** 

Risk Management

No. 57339 (Amendment) R37-4: Adjusted Utah Governmental Immunity Act Limitations on Judgments

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

**Technology Services** 

No. 57353 (Amendment) R895-14: Access to Information Technology for Users with Disabilities

Published: 08/15/2025 Effective: 09/22/2025

Health and Human Services

Integrated Healthcare, Administrative Hearings

No. 57237 (Amendment) R410-14: Administrative Hearing Procedures

Published: 07/01/2025 Effective: 09/19/2025 Administration, Administrative Hearings

No. 57236 (Amendment) R497-100: Adjudicative Proceedings

Published: 07/01/2025 Effective: 09/19/2025

Substance Use and Mental Health

No. 57240 (Repeal) R523-4: Certification Requirements for Screening, Assessment, Prevention, Treatment and Recovery

Support Programs for Adults Published: 07/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57241 (Repeal) R523-15: Drug Testing Requirements

Published: 07/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57239 (Amendment) R523-21: Behavioral Health Receiving Centers Standards

Published: 07/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

### Natural Resources

State Parks

No. 57176 (Repeal and Reenact) R651-612: Veterans with Disabilities Honor Pass

Published: 06/01/2025 Effective: 09/16/2025

### Public Safety

Criminal Investigations and Technical Services, Criminal Identification

No. 57323 (Amendment) R722-360: Certificate of Eligibility for Removal from the Sex Offender and Kidnap Offender Registry

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

### School and Institutional Trust Lands

Administration

No. 57336 (Amendment) R850-30: Special Use Leases

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57337 (Amendment) R850-80: Sale of Trust Lands

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

No. 57338 (Amendment) R850-170: Renewable Energy Lease Agreements

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

### Tax Commission

Motor Vehicle

No. 57326 (Amendment) R873-22M-20: Aircraft Registration

Published: 07/15/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

Motor Vehicle Enforcement

No. 57307 (Amendment) R877-23V-5: Temporary Motor Vehicle Registration Permits and Extension Permits Issued by Dealers

Published: 07/15/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

### NOTICES OF RULE EFFECTIVE DATES

Property Tax

No. 57327 (Amendment) R884-24P-66: County Board of Equalization Procedures and Appeals

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/15/2025

**Transportation** 

Operations, Traffic and Safety

No. 57324 (Amendment) R920-60: Amusement Ride Safety

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/10/2025

**Transportation Commission** 

Administration

No. 57328 (Amendment) R940-6: Prioritization of New Transportation Capacity Projects

Published: 08/01/2025 Effective: 09/10/2025

**End of the Notices of Rule Effective Dates Section**